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(The hearing commenced at 9: 00
a.m)

JUDGE SEYER: Al right. W are
on the record.

Good norning. Today is My
26th, 2026. The tine is 9 o' clock a.m
The Conmm ssion has set this tinme for an
evidentiary hearing in the case
captioned as In the Matter of the
Application of Evergy M ssouri West,
| ncor por at ed doi ng busi ness as Evergy
M ssouri West for approval of an
amendnent to Nucor Steel Sedalia, LLC
agreenent. And Nucor is Nu-c-o-r. It
I's the Conm ssion Case No.

EO 2026- 0129.

My nane is Ken Seyer and | am
the regul atory | aw judge presiding over
this hearing.

The hearing is taking place in
the Public Service Comm ssion hearing
room Room 310 of the Governor Ofice
Building in Jefferson Gty, Mssouri.

Before we go any further, let's

have counsel for the parties nmake their
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entries of appearance, beginning with
Ever gy.

M5. VWHI PPLE: Good nor ni ng.
Jacquel i ne Wi ppl e and M chael Robi nson
of Dentons U.S. LLP. W are here wth
Roger Steiner of Evergy.

JUDGE SEYER: Al right. For
Nucor ?

MR, ELLI NGER. Good norni ng,
Judge. Marc Ellinger with Ellinger
Bel | and Joseph Briscar, excuse ne,
with Stone Matthei s Xenopoul os & Brew
on behal f of Nucor Sedalia Steel.

JUDGE SEYER: Thank you. For
the staff.

MR. GRAHAM  Good nor ni ng,

Judge. Paul Grahamfor the staff of
the M ssouri Public Service Conm ssion.
|"'mhere with Travis Pringle.

JUDGE SEYER  Thank you. And
for the Ofice of the Public Counsel.

MR. GRAHAM Ch, sorry. |
forgot the nost inportant part of ny
teamis Ray Cunneen. Hi s nmaiden voyage

here. He's sitting behind ne, so he's
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out of sight and out of m nd.

JUDGE SEYER: Al right. And
for the Ofice of Public Counsel.

MR, KLIZER  John Klizer on
behal f of the Ofice of Public Counsel.
My busi ness address, Governor Ofice
Bui | di ng, Suite 650, 200 Madi son
Street, P.O Box 2230, Jefferson Cty,
M ssouri 65102. Thank you.

JUDCGE SEYER: Al right, thank
you.

For those in the hearing room
ask everyone to silence their cell
phones and nobil e devices. For those
connected via Wbex, | ask that you
mut e your m crophone when not speaki ng.

The Court Reporter today is not
present in the hearing roombut is
I nstead participating via Wbex;
therefore, it is inportant that you
speak into the m crophone in the
hearing room so that she can record all
t he proceedi ngs.

Before we get too far into this,

|"ve got -- |'ve got a couple of
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gquestions for the attorneys. First for
the attorneys -- well, for the -- for
the attorneys in general, |I don't see
-- staff has not listed this as an
exhi bit, the docunent that was fil ed,
t he Suggestions in Qpposition to
Non- Unani nous Sti pul ati on and
Agreenment. |s there anyone who woul d
have an objection to that being
admtted as an exhibit?

MR. CLIZER  Your Honor, for
clarification, are you asking --

(Court Reporter clarification.)

MR CLIZER  Thank you, Madam
Court Reporter.

John dizer, OPC

To clarify, your Honor, are you
asking for the adm ssion of the entire
suggestions in opposition or are you
asking for the adm ssion of the
attachnment to the sane?

JUDCGE SEYER: All right. The
attachnment. Refamliarize nyself. |If
you can refresh ny nenory as to what

the attachnment i s.
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MR GRAHAM Yes, your Honor.
This is Paul G aham speaking for the
staff.

Staff filed suggestions in
opposition. Staff additionally filed
proposed testinony responsive to the
notion that the parties filed for an
approval of a partial stipulation. So
we tendered testinony and asked | eave
to have that admtted or to use it here
at the hearing.

That was the subject | think of
the -- of the notion that you're
tal king about. So it's testinony in
the formof a nmenorandum It was
mentioned as an exhibit to staff's
suggestions in opposition to the
partial stipulation -- or non-unani nous
sti pul ati on.

JUDGE SEYER Ckay. What |I'm
referring to is actually just the
pl eadi ng and not the attachnent.

MR, GRAHAM Wl |, your Honor,
staff wouldn't --

(Court Reporter clarification.)

(888) 893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required
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MR. CGRAHAM Paul G aham for the
staff again.

Odinarily staff -- well, staff
-- | thought that this was a pl eading.
You had ordered that anybody t hat
wi shed to or needed to would respond by
a certain deadline. | think you
shortened it to two days.

The rul e deadline for responding
t o non-unani nous sti pul ations and the
obj ections or the suggestions in
opposition which | filed or which the
staff filed was in the nature of a
pl eadi ng and so we didn't tender it as
an exhibit.

But attached to it or as a part
of that filing, we went ahead and
tendered testinony in support of what
we were saying and that, of course,
woul d be considered an exhibit and we
requested |l eave to file it.

So | think your question goes to
the testinony.

JUDGE SEYER:  Ckay.

(I ndi stingui shabl e.)

(888) 893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required
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(Court Reporter clarification.)

MR, GRAHAM Paul Grahamis still
speaki ng.

Do you have the EFI'S nunber?

t hought --

JUDGE SEYER: It is actually
EFIS. And for the sake of the Court
Reporter, that is --

(Court Reporter clarification.)

JUDGE SEYER This is --

(Court Reporter clarification.)

JUDGE SEYER: This is Judge
Seyer.

And, M. Graham we're referring
to EFIS, that's E-F-1-S, item
nunber 45.

MR, GRAHAM  Yes.

JUDCGE SEYER: All right, let ne
take a | ook at that.

Al right, M. dizer, assum ng
we are tal king about the suggesti ons,
the pleading with all the attachnents,
do you have an objection to that?

MR CLIZER  John Cizer, OPC.

And you have put ne in sonething

(888) 893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required
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of an awkward position because the OPC
filed both an objection to the filed
stipulation and an objection to the
notion for leave to file testinony
filed by Evergy.

And to the extent that we filed
that objection on the basis that there
shoul d not be additional rounds of
testinony brought in this late in the
case, | would think -- theoretically I
woul d want to maintain that objection
for all efforts to bring in additional
testinony at this point in tine even
t hough our current position is largely
aligned with staff.

So froma standpoint of do |
object in the standard that it is
against ny party's interest for staff
to have that brought into the record,
no.

From the standpoint of am/||
obj ecting generally to the introduction
of evidence brought this late into the
hearing, which would include ny witten

obj ection to Evergy leave to file
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testinony in support of the
stipulation, I would maintain that
obj ecti on as sane.

JUDGE SEYER:  Ckay.

MR. CLIZER  Does the bench
foll ow ne?

JUDGE SEYER A bit.

MR. CLIZER  Fair enough.

JUDGE SEYER: All right. Then
let's -- 1'll take that off the table
for now.

Al right. For the -- for
Evergy's attorneys, though, let ne ask
you this question. Staff has suggested
that the Conm ssion were to accept the
non- unani nous sti pul ati on and
agreenent, that there be sone
conditions attached to that. Wich, if
any, w tness would be the proper person
to ask questions of that?

M5. WHI PPLE: Jacki e Wi pple for
t he conpany.

That woul d be Brian File.

JUDGE SEYER: Ckay. And,

M. dizer, sanme question. |f we
(888) 893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required LEXITAS
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wanted to ask a witness fromthe Public
Counsel's O fice about their position
on those conditions, who woul d that
W t ness be?

MR. CLIZER John Cizer for
OPC.

That answer woul d be CGeoff
Marke. Sorry, Dr. Ceoff Marke.

JUDGE SEYER And that -- for
the sake of the Court Reporter, that is
Ge-o-f-f, am| correct about that?

Ge-o-f-f Ma-r-k-e.

MR. CLIZER  For the sake of
Madam Court Reporter, do you need us to
identify our party or is just our nanes
sufficient? 1t's John Qi zer.

COURT REPORTER  Your nane, sir.
Thank you.

JUDGE SEYER: Al right. Do
the parties have any matters to take
up before we get into opening
st at enent s?

Al right. Al right. Wuld
sonmeone |like to present an opening

statenent on behal f of Evergy?
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M5. WHI PPLE: Good norning. My
It please the Conm ssion.

My nanme i s Jacquel i ne Wi ppl e
and together with ny coll eague M chael
Robi nson of Dentons U. S. LLP and Roger
St ei ner of Evergy, we have the
privilege of appearing before you this
nor ni ng on behal f of Evergy M ssouri
West, which we'll also refer to as EMNV

In this case, EMW and Nucor ask
the Conm ssion to approve their May 18
non- unani nous sti pul ati on and agreenent
whi ch woul d all ow Nucor to participate
in the conpany's denmand response
prograns, including those under the
M ssouri Energy | nvestnent Act --

M ssouri Energy Efficiency Investnent
Act, al so known as MEEI A.

Nucor's previous participation
in EMNV's MEEI A busi ness demand response
program which we're also going to
refer to as the BDR program produced
nore than 2.5 mllion in avoi ded
capacity costs at a benefit to all

cust onmers.
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Nucor's curtail ment al so
produced SPP resource adequacy val ue.
That val ue reduces the capacity that
EMWV nust ot herwi se procure to neet SPP
requirenents, which also | ower costs
for all custoners.

But staff and OPC either want to
prevent Nucor fromparticipating in
EMN's MEEI A BDR program at all or tack
on unreasonabl e conditions that woul d
treat Nucor differently than every
ot her custoner.

So that custoners can continue
to benefit from Nucor's participation,
t he Comm ssi on shoul d approve the
stipul ati on and agreenent.

I n doing so, the Conm ssion
should reject the conditions to the
stipul ation proposed by staff and OPC.
Staff's and OPC s conditions
unreasonably seek to treat one custoner
differently and inpermssibly seek to
create adm nistrative and evidentiary
burdens that are not supported by

M ssouri | aw.
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As EMNw tness Brian File
testifies in his May 18 testinony
of fered in support of the stipulation,
i n many respects the stipulation
addresses concerns raised by staff and
OPCin their pre-filed testinony.

| nportantly, there is a
safeguard built into the stipulation
and agreenent. If a financial analysis
of Nucor's participation in the BDR
programagain, like in its past
performance, shows a net benefit to all
custoners, then the Comm ssion's
approval of the stipulation and its
Nucor contract anmendnent autonmatically
woul d extend for at |east the term of
that contract, which is currently
t hrough 2029.

However, if that financi al
anal ysis shows a net cost to custoners,
then the conditional approval wll
expire at the conclusion of 2027.

O course, any participation by
Nucor beyond 2027 woul d al so be

dependent on the Conm ssion's future
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approval of the conpany's MEEIA
pr ogr ans.

Staff's own eval uati on,
measur enent and verification eval uator,
al so known as EM&V eval uator, will run
this 2027 performance neasurenent using
general | y accepted baseline
met hodol ogi es.

Al'l other provisions for service
to Nucor under the special rate for
i ncrenmental |oad service tariff, or SIL
tariff, wll remain. That includes all
pricing and rates, and every existing
rat epayer protection remains intact.

The stipulation confirns that
Nucor is paid only for the kilowatts it
actually reduces on the sanme MEEI A
Cycle 4 BDI terns -- BDR terns as every
ot her participant.

Under the stipulation, Nucor's
contribution to EMN's BDR goals is
capped at 30 percent of neasured
portfolio negawatts. |f Nucor delivers
nore, EMW s earnings opportunity, or

EOQ, is reduced to reflect 30 percent of
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the portfolio.

Finally, any Nucor kilowatts
counted towards EMN's 2027 BDR goal s
wi Il not count toward the 65 percent
t hreshol d that vests EMN s earni ngs
opportunity.

The stipulation is supported by
the conpany's pre-filed testinony and
M. File's May 18 testinony offered in
support of the stipulation, and it
reduces the genuine issues in this case
for the Comm ssion's determ nation.

As this Comm ssion is well
aware, and as EMNs witnesses M. File
and JP Meitner testified, SPP has set
I ncreased m ni num pl anni ng reserve
mar gi ns of 36 percent margin for wnter
and 16 percent margin for sunmer, these
effective starting summer of 2026.

EMV as the | oad responsi bl e
entity nust neet these new SPP
requirenents. Tinely approval of this
stipulation and the anmendnent permts
t he conpany to count Nucor's reduced

|l oad in the upcom ng SPP accreditation
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seasons.

The conpany's 2026 | RP annual
update filed on May 7 shows EMVN
satisfying its required capacity
t hrough 2028, during which tine new
| oad is expected to on-ranp. To neet
its | RP goals, EMN plans to seek CCN
approval for over 1.3 gigawatts of new
generation by 2030.

Demand response is inportant to
EMWNV sati sfying SPP' s accreditation
requi renments. The negawatts SPP counts
toward Evergy's resource adequacy
obligation directly shape the resource
mx and timng that the conpany's IRP
nmodel produces. |f demand response is
renoved, the plan calls for nore
capacity sooner, at a higher cost. M.
Meitner and M. File testify about
t hese aspects of SPP accreditation in
the conpany's | RP.

As | nmentioned, Nucor takes
servi ce under the approved SIL tariff
schedul e SIL.

Sheet 157 says that SIL service
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may not be eligible for participation
in prograns offered pursuant to MEEIA
or for participation in prograns
related to demand response or off peak
di scounts unl ess otherw se ordered by

t he Comm ssi on when approving a
contract for service under this tariff.

And so the tariff contenpl ates
t he Comm ssion's approval of Nucor's
participation via an anendnent to the
contract in connection with the
sti pul ati on.

IVEEI A provi des that demand side
I nvestnents are val ued the sane by the
Comm ssion as supply side investnents
and so utilities may recover costs and
earn on verified cost-effective
savi ngs.

It al so specifies that custoners
| i ke Nucor who opt out of the demand
side investnent nmechanism or DSIM can
participate in interruptible or
curtail abl e prograns.

The Comm ssi on has al ready

classified the conpany's BDR program as
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such a programin its March 11, 2020
order in EO 2019-0132. And as you are
aware, the Conmm ssion approved EMN s
MEEI A Cycle 4 portfolio, including the
BDR program by an order dated
Decenber 11, 2024 in Case No.
EOQ 2023-0370, with the program running
t hrough 2027. EMW and Nucor are sinply
seeki ng approval for Nucor to
participate in a program and budget
al ready approved by this Conm ssion.

EMN's three wi tnesses have
sponsored testinony and will be
avai |l abl e to answer your questi ons.
Brian File, director of demand side
managenent and energy efficiency, wll
expl ain why the conpany needs denand
response, why Nucor's participation
hel ps every custoner and why staff's
proposed alternatives to MEEIA are
unwor kabl e.

He will also explain Nucor's
event performance from 2021 t hrough
2023 summari zed in his confidenti al

schedul es BF-5 and BF-6. As nenti oned,
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M. File also offers supporting
testinony for the stipulation and
agreenent in this case.

Li nda Nunn, seni or managenent,
regul atory affairs, testifies that the
costs staff proposes to shoehorn into
the SIL tariff's hold harnl ess
cal cul ation are not appropriately
applied there and why Nucor's
participation yields systemw de
benefits that reach every custoner.

M. Meitner, director of market
operations, wll explain SPP s resource
adequacy rules and EMVs 2026 I RP
annual update as related to the
conpany's DR prograns and he w |
further explain how staff's and OPC s
al ternate DR pat hways are nonvi abl e.

As far as the parties' prior
filed list of issues, nost of them have
al ready been answered by the
stipulation. The first issues, issues
A and Al, are resolved by the
stipul ati on.

As di scussed, the Conm ssion
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shoul d approve the stipulation and its
SIL contract anmendnent, allow ng Nucor
to participate in DR prograns offered
by EMA including the MEEI A BDR
program because the record establishes
that it results in just and reasonable
rates and is in the public interest.

Simlarly, due to the
protections in the May 18 stipul ation
and the existing ratepayer protections
inthe SIL tariff itself, no additional
condi tions shoul d be i nposed.

In addition to the stipulation,
the SIL tariff contains five existing
protections to ensure that custoners
are not and will not be harned by
Nucor's participation, which EMN s
W t nesses describe in detail.

These include the hold harml ess
nmechani sm associ ated with the provision
of electric service, the SIL specific
FAC sub-accounts, the rate case revenue
I mput ati on EMW perforns, the 25 percent
four-hour Nucor |oad deviation tracking

and the plan outage notice obligations.
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Toget her, these resol ve i ssue Ala.

| ssues A2, A2a and A2b ask if
Nucor's participation in EMNs MEEI A
BDR program woul d produce benefits to
all custoners, if those quantified
benefits exceed quantified costs and if
t he BDR program has a sufficient
verification process for curtail nents.
The answer to all of those questions is
yes.

| n approving the MEEIA Cycle 4
portfolio, this Conm ssion expressly
found that the Cycle 4 stipulation
meets the aforenenti oned MEEIA
st andar ds.

As M. Meitner and M. File
testify, SPP verifies and credits
Nucor's tested reducti ons agai nst
Evergy' s resource adequacy obligation.
Every custoner shares in that RA
reduction. Nucor's prior verified peak
demand reductions resulted in a
benefit-cost ratio of tw ce nore
benefits than costs.

As M. File testifies, those
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figures used Comm ssi on-approved
Cycl e 3 avoi ded capacity costs and
third-party nmeasured and verified
reductions and they excl ude
transm ssion and distribution of
avoi ded costs. This in turn nmeans the
real benefit to cost ratio |ikely runs
hi gher .

As to the verification part,
AD&M - - ADM & Associates ran the 2021
t hrough 2022 basel i ne net hodol ogy as
third-party eval uation consultant.
Staff's own EMRV consul tant, Evergreen
Econom cs, oversaw that work. Neither
of these third parties flagged Nucor's
basel i ne or any net hodol ogi cal concern.

Participants will be paid only
for nmeasured demand reduction after
each event and SPP separately validates
the nmegawatts that count toward
Evergy's resource adequacy.

Going forward, the stipulation
puts the 2027 performance neasurenent,
that financial analysis nentioned in

the stipulation, in the hands of
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staff's EM&V eval uat or based on
general | y accepted nethodol ogi es.

| ssue A2c asks if there are
ot her DR participation pathways
avai | abl e to Nucor and what detrinents
or benefits are there to those.

Staff and OPC have identified
so-cal l ed alternative pathways, but
none of them are workable as M. File
and M. Meitner testify and as this
denonstrative chart denonstrates.

As M. File and M. Meitner
testify, in SPP, only Evergy as the
| oad responsible entity earns resource
adequacy val ue through its prograns.

Schedule MBDR is a supplenent to
BDR by its own terns and the resource
adequacy val ue that MBDR coul d deliver
is already captured through BDR
partici pation.

Aggregators of retail custoners,
or ARCs, or direct SPP whol esal e
participation do not give Evergy
resour ce adequacy credit.

| ssue B asks whet her existing
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hol d harm ess and cost-tracking
protections are sufficient to protect
non-SIL custoners from any cost shift
attri butable to Nucor service if Nucor
participates in EMNDR progranms. As we
have di scussed, the answer is yes.

Again, the stipulation contains
the conditional approval of protection.
Further, as Ms. Nunn testifies, at each
general rate case, EMNI nputes revenue
to cover any shortfall between Nucor's
rate revenues and the increnental cost
to serve. Any deficiency falls on
shar ehol ders, not on other custoners.

Mor eover, SlL-specific FAC
sub-accounts track the Nucor PPA,
mar ket and transm ssion costs and
revenues. That tracking has produced
only mnor adjustnents to date.

Staff and OPC woul d run MEEI A
program costs through the SIL tariffs
hol d harnml ess cal cul ation, claimng
that those MEEI A program costs are a
cost of serving Nucor and that

excluding themfromthe hold harm ess
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calculation in the tariff would cost
non- Nucor ratepayers unfairly.

But the Comm ssion Cycle 3 order
in EOG-2019-0132 already directs that
DSI M opt - out custoners who participate
i n demand response are conpensat ed,
with the costs flowi ng through the
DSIM not through any electric service
specific hold harm ess provision.

Ms. Nunn will explain why m xing
up these concepts creates an absurd
result where EMN s sharehol ders bear
all of the costs while every other
custoner pockets the benefits.

| ssue C asks whether the
Comm ssion's approval of Nucor's
participation in the MEEI A BDR program
shoul d inpact EMN's ability to receive
an earnings opportunity for verified
savi ngs produced by Nucor's
participation. The answer is no.

The stipul ation carves out
Nucor's 2027 kilowatts fromthe
65 percent vesting threshold for EMN s

earni ngs opportunity and EMNVis on
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track to clear that threshold w thout
Nucor .

The stipulation also caps
Nucor's contribution at 30 percent of
the portfolio for EO purposes.

O herwi se, based on the stipulation,
EMW shoul d recei ve the standard
earni ngs opportunity for Nucor's
third-party verified savings on the
sane pay for performance terns that
govern other MEEIA BDR partici pants.

The Comm ssion set the Cycle 4
EO structure when it approved the
Cycle 4 stipulation and nothing in that
order or MEElI A carve Nucor out of it.
Renovi ng EMN/ s ear ni ngs opportunity
woul d unfairly penalize EMN for
delivering the resource that MEEIA is
designed to incentivize.

EMVN needs denmand response to
neet SPP's new resource adequacy
requi renents, as further confirmed by
the conpany's | atest 2026 | RP annual
updat e.

Nucor is a proven resource,
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provi di ng neasurabl e benefits to all
custoners. Even so, the terns of the
stipulation along wwth the SIL tariff's
exi sting protections shield ratepayers
fromany shortfall.

Accordi ngly, the Conmm ssion
shoul d approve the stipulation and its
SIL contract anmendnment because the
record establishes it is in the public
interest and results in just and
reasonabl e rat es.

The Conm ssi on shoul d reject
conditions to the stipulation proposed
by staff and OPC whi ch unreasonably
seek to treat Nucor differently than
every other EMWN custoner or attenpt to
create burdens beyond MEEIA's statutory
requi renents.

Thank you.

JUDGE SEYER: Al right, this is
Judge Seyer.

Are there any questions fromthe
Comm ssi oners?

Al right, thank you.

Al'l right. Opening statenent on
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behal f of Nucor Steel.

MR. BRI SCAR: Good norning, your
Honor. Good norni ng, Comm ssioners.

My nanme is Joseph Briscar of the
law firm Stone Mattheis Xenopoul os &
Brew. |I'mhere with Marc Ellinger of
the law firmEllinger Bell. And al ong
with ny coll eague M chael Lavanga, we
represent Nucor Steel Sedalia in this
case.

Nucor Steel Sedalia is a steel
mll that uses an electric arc furnace
to nelt and recycle scrap steel into
new steel products. The Sedalia mll
Is one of the newest steel mlls in the
United States since it opened in 2020.

Nucor is proud of its
partnership with the State of M ssour]
and | ooks forward to being part of the
Sedal ia comunity for many years.

Bef ore Nucor started up in
M ssouri, this Conmm ssion approved a
special contract for the Sedalia mll.
The Conmm ssion al so approved the SIL

tariff to conport with the speci al
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contract. Both the contract and the
SIL tariff have been in effect since
2020.

Nucor and Evergy now have
negoti ated an anmendnent to the speci al
contract to allow Nucor to participate
in Evergy's demand response prograns.
The anmendnent was filed wth this
Comm ssion and that -- and this case
was initiated.

Today we respectfully ask that
t he Comm ssi on approve the
non- unani nous stipul ati on and agr eenent
bet ween Evergy and Nucor to nodify
Nucor's contract with Evergy to all ow
Nucor to conditionally participate in
Evergy' s busi ness demand response
prograns and denmand response prograns
I n general.

The stipul ation and agreenent is
in the public interest, provides
rat epayer protections and all ows Nucor
to participate in val uable denmand
response prograns.

At a tine when electric nmarkets
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across the country are experiencing
dramatic | oad grow h, capacity
constraints and hi gher energy prices,
demand response i s becom ng an

I ncreasingly inportant tool to help

| ower energy costs and ensure system
reliability.

Wil e the evidence in this case
shows that Nucor's participation would
provi de benefits to Evergy's system
both staff and the O fice of Public
Counsel w tnesses question the validity
of those benefits.

The stipul ati on and agreenent
addresses those concerns. Specifically
It provides that Nucor's participation
i n Evergy's busi ness demand response
programw || be conditional for 2027.
Evergy will then conduct a financi al
anal ysis of Nucor's participation.

| f the benefits to custoners
out wei gh the costs, Nucor can continue
to participate. |If the costs to
consuners outwei gh the benefits, Nucor

will not be allowed to participate
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beyond 2027.

In addition, the stipulation and
agreenent provi des reasonabl e
condi tions on Evergy's earnings
opportunities from Nucor's
participation and the busi ness denand
response programintended to address
the concerns raised by staff and OPC.

In short, through the
stipul ation and agreenent, Evergy and
Nucor are requesting that the
Comm ssi on approve a trial period to
show that the -- that Nucor's
participation in Evergy's demand
response program can deliver value to
al |l customers.

Thank you for your consideration
and respectfully urge that you approve
the contract anmendnent and the
non- unani nous sti pul ati on and
agr eenent .

JUDCGE SEYER: Thank you.

Are there any questions fromthe
Comm ssi oner s?

COW SSI ONER M TCHELL: Judge
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Seyer, | have just one.

JUDGE SEYER: Conmi ssi oner
Mtchel | .

COW SSI ONER M TCHELL: Thank
you. | notice on the list of wtnesses
that there's not a witness from Nucor
other than in the opening statenents.

So | guess ny question is we
heard in Evergy's opening statenent
that the benefit-cost ratio was around
two and that in this -- in the
condi tional participation section of
the agreenent, that if that
benefit-cost ratio exceeds one, then
the program would be allowed to
conti nue on beyond 2027.

And in the agreenent, | didn't
pick up if there were additional
verifications after 2027 to allow the
-- the -- that participation to
continue. O wll there only be one
verification or will it go into the
standard verification process at that
poi nt ?

MR. BRI SCAR: My under st andi ng
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Is specific to the settl enent agreenent
in this case and Nucor's participation,
the financial analysis is only for
2027, for the 2027 peri od.

And if the benefits and costs
show that Nucor's participation -- or
that the benefits do not exceed the
costs in 2027, that Nucor will not be
al lowed to participate.

Thereafter, ny understanding is
that it would just be part of the
nor mal neasurenent and verification as
part of the MEEIA prograns.

COW SSI ONER M TCHELL: Part of
t he EM&V - -

MR BRI SCAR. That's right, yes.

COW SSI ONER M TCHELL: - -
assessnent ?

Ckay. Thank you, that hel ps ne.

MR. BRI SCAR. O course.
Anyt hi ng further?

JUDCGE SEYER: No. Thank you.

MR. BRI SCAR. (kay. Thank you.

JUDGE SEYER: Al right. This
I s Judge Seyer.
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Staff, would you like to present
an openi ng statenent?

MR. CUNNEEN. Ray Cunneen here
with Paul Graham and Travis Pringle on
behal f of staff.

May it please the Comm ssion.

We have a problem This Comm ssion
staff wants to support approval of the
stipul ati on between Evergy and Nucor,
but it nust be in conpliant (sic) wth
MEEI A and the hold harm ess provisions
of the special increnental |oad
agreenent, or SlL.

Through the passing of MEEIA in
2009, the Legislature nade it clear its
intent to val ue demand side
curtailment. Demand reduction neans
nore capacity -- nore secure capacity,
reduced purchase costs and benefits to
all.

(Court Reporter clarification.)

MR. CUNNEEN. MEEI A was desi gned
to be funded by ratepayers, but only if
the benefits to the custoners outweigh

the costs. Comm ssion staff
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whol eheartedly support prograns that
reduce energy demand and bring benefits
to all ratepayers.

Staff wtness Jordan Hull wll
provi de testinony of the various demand
side prograns that achieve these goals
wi t hout the need for additional cost to
rat epayers.

The stipul ati on reached between
Evergy and Nucor failed to neet the
stringent requirenents of MEEIA and
failed to properly adhere to the hold
harm ess provisions of the SIL. Evergy
and Nucor bear the burden of proof
because they are the signatories to
this stipulation.

IVEEI A requires cost-effective
and verifiable energy demand savi ngs,
benefits to all nmenbers of the custoner
cl ass, regardl ess of participation, and
the fair apportionnent of the costs and
benefits to each custoner cl ass.

Unfortunately, numerous problens
exist wth the stipulation reached

bet ween Evergy and Nucor. The first
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problemis verification of |oad
reduction and the resulting benefits to
al |l customers.

Evergy's nethod of determ ning a
baseline | oad for Nucor is unpractical
and unreliable and taints all the data
of fered as proof. Nucor's load is too
vol atil e and unpredictive for the
approach proposed by Evergy.

Evergy witnesses rely on stale
data from Nucor's problematic
participation in the conpany's third
cycle of MEEIA. That data is
irrel evant here.

The deenmed or assunmed statistics
do not properly solve the problens.
Evergy provides no work papers or
docunentation to support its
assunptions on the benefits or
measuring curtail nment.

Wthout the ability to properly
verify the baseline, there can be no
proper way to verify benefits.
Therefore, this stipulation cannot

support manageabl e and verifiable
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energy savings in accordance with
MEEI A.

However, the problens do not end
there. MEEIA requires the Conm ssion
fairly apportion the costs and benefits
of demand side prograns to each
custoner class. This stipulation does
not do that. The stipulation has
everyone but Evergy and Nucor paying
t he costs.

Nucor's SIL tariff clearly
states that the SIL contract shall
collect at least the increnental costs
I ncurred by the conpany to serve the
custonmer, explicitly stating that all
the charges for service under this rate
schedul e shall be limted to the
charges contained in the contract
bet ween t he conpany and the custoner.
There are no other parties to this
agr eenent .

The SIL tariff states that
nonparticipating custoners, that is
everyone el se, shall be held harnl ess

fromany deficit in revenues from
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serving Nucor and that the conpany wl|
make adj ustnents to cover the
shortfalls so that non-schedule SIL
custoners are held harnl ess.

There lies the root of another
problem The costs associated with
Nucor's participation in MEEIA such as
adm ni strative costs, earnings
opportunities and i ncentives to Nucor,
are bei ng dunped on the ot her
r at epayers.

There are sonme of the costs of
-- these are sone of the costs of
serving Nucor and the SIL tariff
explicitly forbids them from being paid
by anyone el se.

Staff w tness Jordan Hul |
provi des testinony that Nucor can
participate in demand side prograns
out si de of MEEIA, prograns that are not
funded by ratepayers, such as the
regi onal demand response program
t hrough t he Sout hwest Power Pool, or
SPP.

But as | started when --
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stated when | started, staff of the
Comm ssion -- this Comm ssion supports
approval of the stipulation between
Evergy and Nucor so long as it is
anmended to be in conpliance with MEEIA
and the hold harm ess provisions of the
SIL, not before.

Evergy offers probl ens disguised
as solutions. An expiration of the
program after it's been proven to cost
nmore than it's worth doesn't neke
rat epayers whole. Neither wll
limtations on the earnings opportunity
or how Evergy gets its accreditation.
The stipulation doesn't offer a path to
make ratepayers whole after the fact.

As | previously stated, Nucor's
load is volatile and unpredi ctabl e.

The Conmm ssion can mtigate the risk by
establishing a firmcap or firmservice
| evel for Nucor --

(Court Reporter clarification.)

MR. CUNNEEN. -- sinply
i denti fyi ng whet her Nucor kept its |oad

bel ow t he cap during a qualifying
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event. Exhibits 103 and 4 -- and
Exhi bit 104 further offer gui dance on
this.

The firmcap nust be set at a
| evel sufficient to produce a benefit
over cost. Once established, Evergy
must denonstrate that the actual denmand
curtail ment produces verified credit
resource adequacy with SPP in order to
show a benefit.

Thi s includes denonstrating
Nucor's ability to curtail during week
-- W nter peak periods and the
accounting for Nucor's future peak
demand.

The benefit nmust then be
conpared to all the costs of serving
Nucor through MEEIA, as the SIL tariff
requires. This includes adm nistrative
and i ncentive costs.

There nust be an all cost net
benefit cal culation. Anything short of
this would all ow Evergy to punt the
unaccounted costs to other ratepayers.

Lastly, the Comm ssion nust
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i ncl ude a cl awback provision that
ensures Evergy credits or refunds
nonparticipating custoners in
accordance with the SIL to hold
rat epayers harnl ess.

Evergy bears the burden of
showi ng Nucor's participation in MEEIA
woul d be cost effective, beneficial to
all and in adherence with the hold
har m ess provi si ons.

Evergy fails to denonstrate that
the stipulation does that. Staff
of fers solutions that adheres to MEEI A
and the hold harm ess provisions,
establish a firmcap, require
conpliance with SPP for credit and
benefit verification and insert
cl awback nmechanismto hold ratepayers
har m ess.

Staff witness Mark Kiesling
provi des testinony --

(Court Reporter clarification.)

MR. CUNNEEN. Staff w tness Mark
Ki esling provides testinony on

benefits, costs, incentives and avoi ded
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capacity.

Staff wtness Justin Tevie
provi des testinony on the baseline
volatility, load curtailnent, capacity
costs and the hold harmnl ess provisions
of the SIL and the conditions the
Comm ssi on should order for Nucor to
participate in MEEIA

Staff witness Jordan Hull
provi des alternative demand side
prograns, SPP conpliance and staff's
recommended amendnent for Nucor's SIL
agreenment permtting Nucor to
participate in demand response outside
of MEEI A

Evergy stands to earn up to
$200, 000 and Nucor over a mllion, all
that at the expense of ratepayers
outside of its class, all wthout proof
of any benefit to those sanme people
payi ng the costs.

Evergy has failed to neet its
burden of proof. Staff of the
Comm ssi on asks that the Comm ssion

approve the anendnent to schedule SIL
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al l owi ng Nucor to participate in BDR
prograns outside MEEIA or, in the
alternative, permt Nucor to
participate in MEEIA subject to the
conditions offered by staff w tness
Justin Tevie.

Thank you.

JUDGE SEYER  Are there any
guestions fromthe Conmm ssioners?

Al'l right, thank you.

M. dizer.

MR. CLIZER  Good norni ng.

Can you hear ne?

COURT REPORTER  Yes, sir.

MR, CLIZER  Good norning. John
Cizer on behalf of the Mssouri Ofice
of the Public Counsel.

|'"d like to start this norning
by taking just a nonent to sort of
reorient this case a little bit because
predictably, I think, after |istening
to three other openings, there's been a
| ot of focus placed on the benefits
that cone with demand response

progr ans.
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And | want to make sure it's
very clear to everybody that this case
I's not about whether or not denand
response prograns are good or bad, nor
I's this case about whether Nucor shoul d
be participating in demand response
progr ans.

This case really cones down to a
si ngul ar issue, which is should Nucor
be participating in MEEI A demand
response prograns. And by MEEIA | nean
M ssouri -- sorry, M ssouri Energy
Ef ficiency Investnent Act.

And the reason | say that's the
only issue is because there are viable
alternatives for Evergy and for Nucor
specifically to participate in denand
response prograns.

Now, | have commtted what |
consi der sort of the cardinal sin of
presentations. |'ve just thrown a
whol e wall of text up there. |[nstead
of trying toread it out loud, I'mjust
going to give you a second to take a

gander at that. Feel free to read it
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for just a second.

This testinony -- | don't know
iIf I"'mgoing too fast here. This
testinony is taken fromstaff Hull's
rebuttal and it outlines at |east three
or -- two or three, however you want to
count, viable alternatives for Nucor to
participate in demand response
progr amns.

They can either do that through
SPP offered options directly or through
what are call ed aggregators of retail
custonmers, or ARCs. And effectively
the OPC s position is that instead of
usi ng MEEI A, we shoul d be using these
al ternatives.

And the rest of this
presentation is pretty nuch just going
to be ne goi ng through and expl ai ni ng
the differences between these two, the
benefits and the detrinents, and
expl ai ni ng why we believe the
al ternatives are superior.

So, I'"'mgoing to start with

resource adequacy because that was a

(888) 893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required
www.lexitaslegal.com Nevada Registration #116F - California Firm Registration #179

LEXITAS




© 00 N oo o b~ w N B

N N NN NN B B R R R R R R R
o A W N P O © 0 N O U0 M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing
May 26, 2026

Page 55

topic that was touched on very heavily
by Evergy. Evergy already identified
the need for resource adequacy --
neeti ng resource adequacy goals and how
busi ness demand response prograns can
achi eve that.

However, Evergy cane up here and
told you that the alternatives being
of fered by staff and OPC woul d not neet
t hose resource adequacy requirenents,
and |"'mafraid to say that is a flat
fal se statenent.

| f you | ook at the actual
testinmony offered by Evergy's own
Wi t ness, per their discussions with
SPP, Evergy as a | oad responsible
entity can utilize Evergy narket
regi stered DR progranms, and those are
the sane prograns that were referenced
by Jordan Hull just a couple slides ago
in their resource adequacy wor kbooks.
They can use these alternatives to neet
resource adequacy. That is Evergy's
own st atement.

Now, M. Meitner, | hope |
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pronounce that correctly, goes on to
state that there are no current
prograns for these alternatives and
that without using a -- w thout being
run through a programw th the LRE,
Evergy, they wouldn't be able to count.

Well, that's true, but it's also
a very easy problemto fix. Just
create the program All you need to do
IS register these participants, either
the ARCs, or Nucor if it wshes to
participate individually, wth Evergy
with the SPP and you will be able to
utilize them for resource adequacy
pur poses. That's again per Evergy's
own st atement.

So as we go to that -- back to
that chart, that first line, they're
both checked. Both MEEIA and the SPP
or ARCs will provide resource adequacy
nmovi ng forward.

And | want to point out that
that's only for 2027. It is inportant
to note that we've actually already

m ssed the deadline for inclusion of

(888) 893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required
www.lexitaslegal.com Nevada Registration #116F - California Firm Registration #179

LEXITAS




© 00 N oo o b~ w N B

N N NN NN B B R R R R R R R
o A W N P O © 0 N O U0 M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing
May 26, 2026

Page 57

any of these prograns for the 2026
period. So this is actually starting
as of 2027. But the point here is that
both of these options wll neet the
resour ce adequacy goal .

Next up is conpetition. Now,
why do | bring up conpetition? Wll,

I f you were to ask ne, the goal of this
Comm ssion wit large is effectively to
serve as a proxy for the market.

And when | say serve as a proxy
for the market, your goal, | believe,
shoul d be, whenever possible, to
emul ate or at | east pronote
conpetition.

And you can see here a quote
from OPC witness Dr. Marke who states
as much and he actually quotes the
known and fanobus econom st Al fred Kahn
who states, \Wenever conpetition is
feasible, it is, for all its
I nperfections, superior to regulation
as a neans of serving the public
interest. So this Comm ssion shoul d

want to pronote conpetition.
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And by the way, it's not just
Dr. Marke. You have here a quote taken
froma joint letter fromthe
U. S. Departnent of Justice and the
Federal Trade Conm ssion of the Suprene
Court of Tennessee which again extols
the virtue of conpetition.

This is what we shoul d be
pronoting. This should be the central
goal of the Comm ssion, is to pronote
and i nprove conpetition.

And if that wasn't enough, take
a |l ook at your own m ssion statenent
where you twice refer to conpetition
bei ng sonething that you wish to
pronote within this state as part of
your m ssion as a Conm ssion.

So why am | harping so nuch on
conpetition? WlIl, because what we
have in front of us is an actual,
genui ne chance to actually pronote
conpetition in this state.

ARCs, whi ch again, aggregators
of retail choice, m ght be wong on

that, represent true narket-based
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alternatives that allow for conpetition
in the state on the demand side
managenent front.

This is an opportunity for you
to fulfill your own m ssion statenent,
to fulfill the goal of this Comm ssion
and to allow for conpetition in the
state.

| f, however, you allow Evergy to
run these demand response prograns
t hrough MEEIA, you're going to be
killing conpetition because what
third-party conpetitor would want to
conpete with a utility who has the
backi ng of captive ratepayer funding to
run their prograns? No one woul d.

So if you truly want to pronote
conpetition in the state, you need to
allow for ARCs to participate, and in
this case that neans saying no to the
applicati on.

Let's next tal k about cost
savings. So using one of the
al ternatives we've described, either

t hrough the SPP direct participation or
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t hrough ARCs, we are going to save
rat epayers noney.

First we are going to have to
avoi d payi ng Nucor out of the MEEIA
budget. You already heard staff
counsel explain that that cost is
roughly a mllion dollars. W also do
not need to include themin our EMV.

Now, | want to point out that
the existing EM&V contract was set up
on the assunption that Nucor was not a
participant. It's the OPC s position
that if you include Nucor as a
partici pant going forward, we'll need
to renegotiate that EM&V contract,
whi ch could theoretically lead to
I ncreased costs.

W would |like to avoid doi ng
that, which is why we believe that not
I ncl udi ng them and keepi ng the existing
EM&V contract is in the custoners' best
I nterests.

Finally, we have to -- we can
avoid having to pay an earnings

opportunity, i.e. profit, to Evergy to
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account for Nucor's participation. So
based on those, we again see we have
cost savings using our alternatives.

But | want to cone back to this
for just a second because it's that
| ast point that really -- you need to
understand that's what's driving this
entire case.

The reason that we're here right
now is pretty nuch down exclusively to
the fact that Evergy feels entitled to
t he earnings opportunity that it woul d
earn through MEEIA.

And the only way it earns that
earni ng opportunity in this case is if
Nucor participates through MEEIA If
It doesn't, if it participates either
directly in the SPP or through an ARC,
Evergy won't have that earnings
opportunity.

And so that really is the main
question, in ny opinion. It's is this
Comm ssion going to allow Evergy to
operate as an expensive and unnecessary

m ddl eman, jacking up costs by running
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t he program through MEEI A, or can we
use one of these alternatives which

al ready exists and reduce costs
accordingly? | think the option or the
answer is exceptionally clear.

| have two nore things on ny
little grid. The first is the
violation of the hold harnl ess
provi sion. This has obviously been
sort of touched on a bit, so |'m going
to give you a very high level, very
sinplified explanation.

Evergy's SIL tariff says that
nonpartici pating custoners shall be
hel d harm ess fromany deficit in
revenues provided by any custoner
served under this tariff.

By participating in the MEEIA
program Nucor will get a discounted
bill while other ratepayers do not. A
di scounted bill results in a deficit in
revenues, hence the violation.

|"mgoing to be honest. That is
a probably gross oversinplification,

but again, | wanted to present a

(888) 893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required
www.lexitaslegal.com Nevada Registration #116F - California Firm Registration #179

LEXITAS




© 00 N oo o b~ w N B

N N NN NN B B R R R R R R R
o A W N P O © 0 N O U0 M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing
May 26, 2026

Page 63

sinplified version of this. And also,
whil e we've noted, Nucor will not be
payi ng any part of the MEEI A program
costs, that DSIM charge.

| do want to take just a nonent
to respond to sonething that was said
earlier. Evergy in its opening made a
great deal of the fact that staff and
the OPC seened to be wanting to treat
Nucor differently.

And | want to stress to you,
Nucor is treated differently because
Nucor fought tooth and nail to get its
own tariffed rates. It has the SIL
tariff. It is the only one on the SIL
tariff.

So for themto cone in and fight
hard to be treated differently and then
conpl ai n because they're being treated
differently seens hypocritical, in ny
opi ni on.

But | digress. GCetting back to
this grid, you can see participating in
MEEIA wi Il potentially result in tariff

vi ol ati ons because of the hold harnl ess
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provi sion whereas if they participate
t hrough SPP or ARCs, we can avoid that.
The |l ast issue is the accuracy
problem and |I'm going to be honest,
this is a conplex issue, it's addressed
at length in staff testinony. | don't
want to get too deep into the weeds.
So instead |"mjust going to
give you a brief excerpt fromstaff
W t ness Tevie who explains that from
staff's opinion, there are probl ens
determ ning the accuracy of Nucor's
| oad and that that will have knock-on
effects inproperly neasuring the anount
of demand savi ngs that are generated.
Now, | want to again stress to
you, your staff doesn't have a dog in
this fight, by which I nean if it tells
you it has accuracy problens, it's not
trying to -- it doesn't have a profit
notive. Evergy, on the other hand,
clearly has a profit notive.
So | ask you to keep that into
consi derati on and pl ease gi ve due

diligence to the fact that your staff
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I's saying they believe there's a
legitimate problemto accurately
nmeasuring the |load of this custoner and
that will have an effect on MEEI A

So again, we add that | ast
checkmark. And as you can see from
this graph, there are substantially
better alternatives in place from using
Evergy' s existing MEEIA.

| want to summarize here really
quick. As | already said, there are
better alternatives. Nucor's
participation wll nost |likely violate
the hold harm ess provision, and there
are fundanental problens to applying
the MEEI A framework to Nucor
accurately.

Real |y quick, just to |ook
forward on a couple of things, this is
sonething | just want the Conm ssion to
sort of be aware of.

SPP has submtted tariff
provi sions for demand response prograns
to FERC, and those rul es are under

review. So this is sonething that
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Is actively being worked on by the
FERC.

Also, | want to again -- there
was di scussion earlier, Evergy has
massi ve | oad additions com ng on, nost
of those com ng on from hyperscal ers.
And frankly, those are going to
conpletely dwarf the inpact that Nucor
has.

So what we're doing here, while
i nportant, is largely going to be
rendered alnost irrelevant if the
anount of |oad that we're expecting to
cone on actually does cone on.

And finally, 1'd also just want
to reiterate that we have in fact
m ssed the deadline for 2026. | just
-- | want to nake sure that that's very
clear to this Comm ssion.

Al right. So that brings ne to
the very end. And again, |['ll wap up
on this |ast one.

W have an opportunity here to
do demand response but to do demand

response in a way that pronotes
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conpetition, that saves custoners
nmoney, that avoids having to nuck about
or potentially violate the MEEIA tariff
and can avoid the accuracy probl ens
that are exhibit because as staff
explains in their testinony SPP has a
nmore rigorous verification process.
And the only thing it wll cost is for
Evergy to not get its earnings
opportunity.

So the question before this
Comm ssion really is literally just
this: Do you want Evergy to act as an
unnecessary and expensive m ddl eman or
not ?

Wth that, I'lIl ask if there's
any questions.

JUDGE SEYER: Al right. Thank
you, M. dizer.

Evergy, would you like to call
your first w tness?

MR, STEINER. Yes. This is
Roger Steiner and we call JP Meitner.

JUDGE SEYER: Before we get into

M. Meitner's testinony, was that the
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list -- the order of the |ist of
W t nesses?

MR. STEINER. This is Roger
Steiner. It was not -- Ms. Nunn has a
travel issue and --

(Court Reporter clarification.)

MR. STEI NER: Roger Steiner,
Ever gy.

Ms. Nunn was schedul ed to be
first, but the parties agreed she had
travel issues and she could be taken
out of order.

JUDCGE SEYER Ckay. Do we know
when you expect her to testify?

MR. STEI NER:  Probably around
noon or -- she wasn't -- she was
traveling, so --

JUDGE SEYER  Ckay.

MR. STEINER: But she'll be here
t oday.

JUDGE SEYER: Al right, thank
you.

Al right. M. Mitner,
woul d you rai se your right hand,

pl ease.
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JP MEl TNER,
(of lawful age, having been sworn, testified as
foll ows:)
MR, STEINER: This is Roger
St ei ner agai n.
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON BY MR, STElI NER:

Q Please state your nane for the record.

A.  JP Meitner.

Q M. Mitner, where do you work and what is
your position?

A. | work in Topeka, Kansas. M position is
di rector of market operations.

Q And you're enployed by Evergy; is that
correct?

A. That's correct.

Q And did you cause to be filed in this case
surrebuttal testinony which has been
previously marked as Exhibit 5?

A1 did.

Q Do you have any changes or corrections to

that testinony?

A. No.
MR. STElI NER: Your Honor, at
this tine | would offer Exhibit 5 into
the record and tender the w tness for
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Q
A

Q

A

Cross-exam nati on.

JUDGE SEYER: Right. Are there
any obj ections to the adm ssion of
Exhi bit 57?

MR. GRAHAM None fromstaff.
Paul Graham speaki ng.

JUDGE SEYER: All right.

Exhibit 5 is admtted.

Al right. For Nucor?

MR. BRI SCAR. Joseph Briscar for
Nucor. We do not have any questions,
t hank you.

JUDGE SEYER  kay.

M. G aham

MR GRAHAM Yes. This is Paul

G aham speaki ng.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON BY MR GRAHAM

Good norning, M. Meitner.

Good nor ni ng.

|"'m sure you were here and you heard the
openi ng statenent nmade by M. Wi ppl e?

| did.

Okay. And you' ve heard the opening
statenent al so made by M. dizer?

Yes.
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Q And both of themraised the issue that
staff and OPC appear to be asking the
Comm ssion to treat Nucor differently than
ot her participants. You heard those
statements; is that right?

A. I'msorry, can you repeat the question?

Q You heard the opening statenents to the
effect that staff and OPC, the O fice of
Publ i ¢ Counsel, appear to be asking the
Comm ssi on unreasonably to treat Nucor
differently than other custoners? You
heard that, did you not?

A. Yes, | heard the opening statenents.

Q OCkay. Now, Nucor in fact is a steel
snelting conpany; is that right?

A. | believe that was what was said in the
openi ng statenents.

Q Do you know that to be the case?

A. | believe that to be the case.

Q And in your investigations in this matter,
acting on behalf of Evergy, you know t hat
to be the case, that Nucor is a steel
snel ting conpany?

A. That's correct.

Q And you are aware that one of the main
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threshol d gateway issues in this case is
the problem of setting a baseline for all
cal cul ations that are going to be made with
respect to detrinments or burdens that this
program this proposed program may cause?
MR, STEINER. 1'mgoing to
object that that asks for a | egal
concl usi on.
(Court Reporter clarification.)
MR. STEINER: This is Roger
St ei ner, Evergy.
|"mgoing to object. That
question asks for a |legal concl usion
that hasn't been established -- that
this witness isn't prepared to answer.
JUDGE SEYER: M. G aham
MR GRAHAM Well, with respect
to issues, we have -- whether it's an
I ssue or not, we have listened to
several opening statenents here where
no such objection was nade as the
counsel for Evergy and Nucor both laid
out for the Conm ssion the issues that
woul d be addressed here.

The questions that nust be
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answered here are not entirely | egal,
they are factual. |In fact, in order to
get to the legal issue, you have to go
t hrough the gateway of the factual
I ssue, and that's what |'masking this
W t ness.

A baseline is not a | egal
question. A baseline for the
calculation of the effects of a program
Is at the -- at the threshold and in
fact at every step all the way through
a factual question foll owed by factual
and factual questions.

JUDCGE SEYER: |'Il overrule the
obj ecti on.

Q (By M. Gaham Al right. Now, you are
aware, | assune, sir, or tell me if you are
aware, that the load, the electrical or
power | oad that Nucor presents at any
nonment or over a span of any particul ar
time inits snelting process is very
volatile, it junps up and down?

A I'm-- I"'mnot famliar with the volatility
of -- of their load. | -- | could speak to
the requirenents of SPP around proof of the
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>

Q

validity of a |oad for demand response --
Al right.
-- resource adequacy.
Ckay. But with respect to this particular
custoner and its volatile |oad, you're not
prepared to testify?
| m not prepared to speak to Nucor's
vol atility or lack thereof and their --
Ckay. And you're not prepared to testify,
therefore, concerning why Nucor m ght be
cut out of the pack and | ooked at a little
bit differently than any other custoner on
account of baseline problens?
MR STEINER: (bject; asked and
answered. He said he's not --
(Court Reporter clarification.)
MR. STEINER: Roger Steiner with
t he conpany, Evergy.
Asked and answered. This
Wi tness said he is not prepared to
answer questions about Nucor's | oad
characteristics.
(By M. Graham) Do you know - -
JUDGE SEYER: |I'Il sustain the

obj ecti on.
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(By M. Grahanm) Ckay. Do you know of any
other wiwtness who will be testifying in
t hese proceedi ngs on behalf of Evergy that
woul d be prepared to answer those questions
about Nucor's particular challenges or the
chal l enges that it presents in establishing
a baseline for calculating whether in fact
Nucor woul d be bringing anything positive
to the table? Do you know of any ot her
W t nesses that Evergy's got?
| believe the best witness to speak to the
measur enment and verification of Nucor |oad
woul d be witness File.
MR GRAHAM All right, that's
all the questions staff has.
JUDGE SEYER: All right.
M. Cizer, do you have
guestions?
MR. CLIZER  No, your Honor,
t hank you.
JUDGE SEYER: Al right. Do the
Comm ssi oners have any questions?
Chai r Hahn.
CHAI R HAHN:  Good nor ni ng,
M. Meitner.
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THE W TNESS: Good norni ng.

CHAIR HAHN:  It's ny
under standi ng that staff and OPC s
primary contention is that they prefer
Evergy and Nucor to use the SPP
prograns or ARC prograns.

I n your surrebuttal testinony,
you di scuss why perhaps participation
in the SPP prograns don't provide all
the benefits. Can you pl ease expl ain
what that nmeans and how SPP operates
t hose prograns, please?

THE WTNESS: Sure. So in ny
surrebuttal testinony, | was really
speaking to the concept from SPP' s
perspective about how those prograns
woul d work from a resource adequacy
per specti ve.

What | pointed out was that
based on Evergy's tariffs, that the
only option to participate is the MEEIA
BDR.  Just pointing out sonme of the --
the chall enges with the other prograns,
starting wth ARC as an exanple, is

t hat that aggregator of |oad would
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still need to be a vendor of Evergy

M ssouri West, neaning they would sell

t hat demand response aggregation to the
M ssouri West portfolio. That would
then be included in the resource
adequacy wor kbook.

O herwise, if it is not in
Evergy's -- Mssouri West's workbook,

It cannot be cl ainmed towards resource
adequacy regardl ess of where the
custoners reside, the service territory
or anything else. So there's still

that -- that cost because that
aggregator is looking to be paid for
that -- that aggregation of denmand
response.

The MB -- or, I'msorry, the SPP
demand response prograns, the
di spat chabl e and the bl ock, again can
qualify for resource adequacy but again
that is not in Evergy's tariff.

The MBDR where it's suggested
that that would reside is really --
really a supplenent to the MEEIA
program which is where the demand --
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or, I"'msorry, where the resource
adequacy resides, and the MBDR program
iIs really designed to participate in
the energy and ancillary markets and
not for resource adequacy.

CHAIR HAHN:  So | want to nake
sure that | fully understand this. |If
Nucor were to participate in one of
SPP's tariffs or through a third-party
aggregator that would then sell as SPP
or it's registered wwth SPP, Evergy
M ssouri West would not get any
capacity accreditation for any -- for
Nucor as a resource?

THE W TNESS: Based on where it
I s today and based on assum ng that the
ARC woul d not be a vendor of Evergy
M ssouri West, there would be no
resource adequacy benefit to the Evergy
M ssouri West custoner fromthose
pr ogr ans.

CHAIR HAHN: Are there any
aggregators wthin Evergy M ssouri
West ?

THE WTNESS: | don't know for
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sure if there are aggregators. |
assune there are, but I -- | cannot say
that for certain.

CHAI R HAHN:  Thank you.

JUDGE SEYER  Are there any
ot her questions fromthe Conm ssioners?

CHAIR HAHN: One nore question.

JUDCGE SEYER: Ch. Chair Hahn.

CHAIR HAHN:. Sorry.

The Comm ssion had set a
standard of a hundred -- for |arger
custoners being able to participate
within a third-party aggregator. |
can't renenber the exact negawatt
threshold. Wuld Nucor qualify under
that nmegawatt threshold to be an
eligible participant of a third-party
aggr egat or.

THE WTNESS: | don't know t hat
answer. | apologize. | -- I'msure
sonmeone wWith Evergy does.

CHAI R HAHN:  Ckay, thank you.

JUDGE SEYER: Al right, thank
you, Chair Hahn.

| do have a question nyself.
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Are demand response calls under the
BDR, the business denmand response
program nmade during the sunmer?

THE W TNESS. Yes.

(Court Reporter clarification.)

JUDCGE SEYER: Yes, this is Judge
Seyer.

And are those -- are there
busi ness -- are business denmand
response calls under the BDR program
made during the winter?

THE WTNESS: | believe wtness
File woul d be able to speak nore to the
speci fic nmechanics of those call
opportunities.

JUDGE SEYER: Ckay. Ckay.

COURT REPORTER: Judge, if we
could take a break at sonme point in the
future, please.

JUDGE SEYER  Yes, after this
W t ness.

COURT REPORTER  Thank you, sir.

JUDGE SEYER  Does Nucor have
any recross?

MR. BRI SCAR: Joseph Briscar for
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Nucor. No.

COW SSI ONER M TCHELL: Judge,
if I may, | had a question or two as
wel | .

JUDGE SEYER Oh, |'m sorry.
Comm ssioner Mtchell.

COW SSI ONER M TCHELL:  Yes.
Thank you for your clarifications. |
amcurious. In the alternative
participation pathways that have been
suggested, |I'massumng that there is
sonme cost involved in participation
either directly with Sout hwest Power
Pool or if the DR participation cane
t hrough an aggregator.

And |'m curious how those costs
are then recovered either by the
aggregator or by Sout hwest Power Pool
and then how they then translate to
cost to the ratepayers.

THE WTNESS: Yeah, that's a
good question. So as | said earlier,
first starting with the ARC program
t hat aggregator woul d have an

expectation of conpensation for the
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program when they sold that to soneone
that was | ooking for accredited
capacity.

| think it's inportant to
remenber that in SPP there is not a
capacity market |i ke nmaybe you woul d
think of in M SO or another RTO, and so
-- and a RTOwth a capacity market,
there's a nmuch snoot her avenue for that
capacity to receive paynent.

In SPP, because it's a capacity
obligation but not a capacity narket,
there would then need to be a bil ateral
transacti on between the parties for
that accredited capacity to then hit in
this case the Evergy M ssouri West
resour ce adequacy wor kbook.

COWMWM SSI ONER M TCHELL: Ckay.

And | think | also heard in OPC s
openi ng that for both SPP -- well,
maybe just for SPP is what | heard,
that FERC is working on the tariff
| anguage that woul d address
participation directly with SPP.

So fair to say that those
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prograns aren't -- as we -- as we speak
today, those prograns aren't avail able
or they're in sone state of evolution
at this point?

THE WTNESS: Are you speaki ng
directly to SPP regi stered demand
response program or ARCs?

COW SSI ONER M TCHELL: VYes.

THE WTNESS: Asking if those
are avail abl e today? No, those --

t hose woul d be avail able today. | --
think the -- the point -- well, |
shoul d think, but the -- the point nade
earlier | think is around that -- that
there are a |l ot of changes goi ng on at
SPP and other RTGs, for that matter,
around everything resource adequacy.

It's a -- a bigtopic at -- at a
lot of RTOs and | -- | think that it
was just pointing out that there's
conti nual conversation around the
evol uti on of resource adequacy at SPP.

COW SSI ONER M TCHELL: Ckay,
thank you. |'mgoing to ask you to

generalize just a little bit. Gven
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the RTGs, you know, the inpacts of

Wi nter stormFern on the RTGs, how do
you think the demand response prograns
performed in terns of their reliability
and effectiveness?

THE WTNESS: Specifically for
SPP, | -- | believe that they've nade a
| ot of progress in the validation,
verification of demand response
prograns really since winter storm Uri
where SPP realized post event that they
didn't have a -- a lot of visibility
i nto these prograns.

And so | m ght say nobst notably,
again, where a lot of ny testinony was
focused was on resource adequacy
treatnment of this programand SPP has
taken great strides in the verification
of demand response prograns to ensure
that those prograns bring the benefit
that they're being accredited for in --
I n the workbook.

So, you know, when -- when we
t hi nk about neasurenent and

verification for resource adequacy
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pur poses, Evergy M ssouri West neasures
it the exact sane way that SPP does in
-- in the fact of determ ning whet her
the programis -- is neeting the
potential that it set -- it brings.

And once that's confirmed by SPP pri or
to that peak season, that value is
brought to the custonmer through the

wor kbook in a -- in a reduction of
demand response that would need to cone
from sonmewhere el se because those
megawatts are now showi ng up in that
wor kbook for that peak season.

And that's -- in every peak
season, there's a requirenent to
continue to provide that docunentation
and -- and whatever records that SPP
requires to -- to validate that that
program shoul d indeed fall wthin the
wor kbook.

COW SSI ONER M TCHELL: Thank
you, M. Meitner. That hel ps ne
under st and. Appreciate your testinony.
Thank you.

JUDGE SEYER: Thank you,
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Conmm ssioner Mtchell. And Chair Hahn
has anot her questi on.

CHAIR HAHN: Yeah, I'mgoing to
fol |l ow Comm ssioner Mtchell's
guesti ons.

SPP currently has a filing
pendi ng at FERC to expand their denmand
response prograns. |f that -- which
will be litigated. |If that is
approved, the resources that are then
regi stered with SPP, woul d they count
toward the resource adequacy
cal cul ation of Evergy M ssouri West at
SPP?

THE WTNESS: Conceptual ly they
could and they could today. The -- the
-- the point that was nmade earlier is
that the only tariff programthat --
that Evergy has available to -- to
participate in resource adequacy is
MEEI A.

CHAIR HAHN: Ckay. Thank you.

JUDGE SEYER Al right. At
this point, let's do take a break and

then we wll reconvene, let's say

(888) 893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required
www.lexitaslegal.com Nevada Registration #116F - California Firm Registration #179

LEXITAS




© 00 N oo o b~ w N B

N N NN NN B B R R R R R R R
o A W N P O © 0 N O U0 M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing

May 26, 2026 Page 87
10: 35.
UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: |'m
sorry.
JUDGE SEYER® We will -- | nean
right now? GCkay, okay. |'msorry.

W are not going to break at
this tine.
M. Briscar, do you have further
recross or any recross?
MR. BRI SCAR: No recross.
JUDGE SEYER Al right.
M. G aham
MR CRAHAM This is Paul
G aham  Yes.
(By M. Graham) Picking up on the
guestions fromthe Comm ssioners, the
programthat we have before us wll not
actually go into effect until 2027; is that
fair?
That's nmy understanding, is that the first
eligibility would be the summer of 2027
peak season in SPP.
And you do acknow edge and you know, in
fact, as the Conm ssioner -- as the

Comm ssi oners have pointed out, that there
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are pendi ng proposals before SPP to nodify
tariffs and docunents such that the
proposal that you have with Nucor woul d
qualify Evergy for credits within the SPP
programin the future if those nmeasures
were adopted in tariffs by SPP? You're --

MR, STEINER: 1'mgoing to
obj ect --

(Court Reporter clarification.)

MR. STEI NER: Roger Steiner,
Ever gy.

' mgoing to object. The
guestion nmade an inference that he knew
sonet hi ng based on what the
Conm ssi oner said and --

MR GRAHAM No. May | respond?

JUDCGE SEYER  Yes.

MR GRAHAM | didn't nmake any
I nference. | asked himdid he not
know, does he not know this to be the
case, that these things are pending
bef ore SPP.

A. | understand that the filing is in front of
FERC on potential changes to SPP denmand

response prograns.

(888) 893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com Nevada Registration #116F - California Firm Registration #179




© 00 N oo o b~ w N B

N N NN NN B B R R R R R R R
o A W N P O © 0 N O U0 M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing
May 26, 2026 Page 89

(Court Reporter clarification.)
(I ndi stingui shable.)
MR, GRAHAM That's all the
guestions | have.
JUDGE SEYER Al right,
M. Cizer, on behalf of Public
Counsel .
MR CLIZER  Yes, your Honor,
t hank you.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON BY MR, CLI ZER
Q Good norning. It's still norning.
A. Good norni ng.
Q I would like to pick up on a coupl e of
guestions that you received fromthe
Comm ssion's Chair. And |I'mgoing to do ny
best here to paraphrase what | think was
the answer. |If | get it wong, please
correct ne. I'mtrying to do ny best to
make sure | get this accurate.

You were effectively asked to give an
under st andi ng of what the existing current
situation is with regard to resource
adequacy and | think that your answer was
that there are no existing Evergy tariffs

that would allow for direct participation
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in the SPP except through MEEIA; is that
accurate?

The -- the point that | was nmaeking is that
the MBDR programis a -- a supplenent to
the BDR programto participate in energy
and ancillary service narkets and not for
resour ce adequacy.

Ckay. But let's go back to just the
general idea of can a custoner |ike Nucor
participate directly in SPP denmand response
prograns and have that count towards
resour ce adequacy, and your answer was t hat
there are not existing tariffs that woul d
all ow Evergy to count that custoner for its
resour ce adequacy wor kbooks; is that
accurate?

O her than MEEI A BDR, correct.

My question is, is there anything
preventing Evergy fromcreating a tariff
that would allow direct participation in a
manner that would allow a custoner I|ike
Nucor to count for resource adequacy

out si de of MEEI A?

| can't answer that question. That woul d

be a better question for witness File.
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Q So at |least to your know edge, you're not
aware of anything that would prevent Evergy
fromcreating a new tariff that would all ow
direct participation in SPP in a manner
that would allow a custoner |ike Nucor to
be counted towards Evergy's resource
adequacy wor kbooks?

MR. STEINER: This is Roger
Steiner with Evergy.

And I'mgoing to object. This
guestion was asked and answered. The
W tness said he didn't know and asked

that witness File be asked the

guesti on.
MR CLIZER Well, if | may
respond, | do believe he said w tness

File woul d be a better answer, but |
didn't hear the I don't know that part.
| would i ke to get the | don't know
that part on the record.
JUDGE SEYER Right. 1"l

overrul e the objection.

A. Can you ask the question again?

Q (By M. dizer) Naturally. Are you aware

of anything that woul d prevent Evergy from

(888) 893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com Nevada Registration #116F - California Firm Registration #179




© 00 N oo o b~ w N B

N N NN NN B B R R R R R R R
o A W N P O © 0 N O U0 M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing
May 26, 2026 Page 92

creating a tariff that would all ow a
custoner like Nucor to directly participate
I n Sout hwest Power Pool's resource adequacy
demand response prograns in a manner that
woul d count towards Evergy's resource
adequacy out si de of MEEI A?
| don't know that answer.
Thank you.
MR. CLIZER  No further
guesti ons.
JUDGE SEYER: All right.
M. Steiner, do you have redirect?
MR STEINER. Alittle bit, yes,
t hanks. Roger Steiner, Evergy.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON BY MR STElI NER

Q

You were discussing wth counsel for staff
and counsel for OPC the resource adeguacy

I ssue and whet her Nucor could participate
at SPP, whether they could participate
through MEEIA. If Nucor is not allowed to
participate per MEEIA what are -- what are
the options as far as paper capacity to
cover the resource adequacy?

So in Evergy's latest IRP, the 2026 IRP, it

-- it solves for neeting the |oad
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obligation via multiple different capacity
types, owned generation, PPAs, denmand
response prograns, new build, et cetera,
and -- and | would say that what | do know
about that is that when you | ook at the
MEEI A BDR all-in costs in the IRP -- | atest
| RP is that those costs are | ower than the
assuned paper capacity options for the next
several years, '27 through '29 tine frane.
And you tal ked about the anendnent that
we're here today to get approved and is
your understanding that that is so Nucor
could participate in all DR prograns?

Can you repeat the question?

The anendnent that we're here trying to get
approval for, would that all ow
participation by Nucor in the entire suite
of DR progranms that Evergy has, not just
VBDR?

The anmendnent that we are tal ki ng about
woul d all ow for Nucor to participate in the
demand response programthat Evergy has
avai |l abl e to custoners.

Ckay. You were asked by counsel for staff

If you listened to the opening statenents
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and you sai d yes.

A | did listen.

Q Do you -- do you recall M. dizer saying
that there was an easy fix or --

MR, CLIZER |I'mgoing to object

(Court Reporter clarification.)

MR, CLIZER | was about to say
John Cizer. Apol ogies.

He's attenpting to expand the
scope of the cross-exam nation by just
referenci ng openi ng argunents outside
of what was actually di scussed on
Cross-exam nati on.

MR. STEINER. He was asked if he
listened to it. He said he did. And
t hen he was asked several questions
about the openings, including your
openings, and so |I'm --

MR. CLIZER  There needs to be a
specific cross question tied to the
I ssue that he wants to redirect on, not
just a vague reference to the fact that
openi ngs were di scussed.

MR, STEINER. Well, | was trying
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to do that and then you obj ect ed.

JUDGE SEYER: |'Il sustain the
obj ecti on.

MR. STEINER: That's all | have.
Thank you.

JUDGE SEYER: Al right. At
this point, let's take a break. W
wi |l reconvene at 10:45. Going off the
record.
(Wher eupon, a break was taken.)
JUDGE SEYER: W are back on the
record and, Evergy, call your next
W t ness.
M5. WH PPLE: Conpany calls to
the stand Brian File.
JUDGE SEYER: Good norni ng,
M. File. Wuld you raise your right
hand, please. Thank you.
BRI AN FI LE,
(of lawful age, having been sworn, testified as
follows:)
M5. WH PPLE: This is Jackie
Wi ppl e for the conpany.
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON BY Ms. VHI PPLE:

Q Wuld you please state your nane?

(888) 893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com Nevada Registration #116F - California Firm Registration #179




© 00 N oo o b~ w N B

N N NN NN B B R R R R R R R
o A W N P O © 0 N O U0 M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing
May 26, 2026 Page 96

A It is Brian File.

Q By whom are you enpl oyed?

A.  Evergy.

Q VWhat is your position there?

A. M position is director of demand side
managenent prograns.

Q In this case, on behalf of Evergy M ssouri
West, did you prepare and cause to be filed
public and confidential direct testinony,
public and confidential surrebuttal
testinony and have you offered supporting
testinmony for the May 18 stipul ati on and
agreenent ?

A. | did and | have.

Q Do you have any corrections to your direct
surrebuttal or supporting testinony?

A. Not at this tine.

Q If I were to ask you the questions in each
of those testinonies, would your answers be
t he sane?

A Yes.

Q Are those answers true and correct to the
best of your know edge and belief?

A Yes.

Q And to your understanding, is your direct
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testinony (public) |abeled as Exhibit 1,
direct testinony (confidential) |abeled as
Exhibit 2, surrebuttal testinony (public)
| abel ed as Exhibit 3, surrebuttal testinony
(confidential) |abeled as Exhibit 4,
testinony in support of non-unani nous
stipulation and agreenent, Exhibit 7, and
I's the non-unani nous sti pul ati on and
agreenent that goes with that supporting
testinony | abel ed as Exhibit 87
Sounds correct.
M5. WHI PPLE: All right, your
Honor, at this tinme, | would nove to
admt, please, Exhibits 1, 2, 3, 4, 7
and 8.
JUDGE SEYER: 1, 2, 3, 4, 7 and

M5. WHI PPLE: That's correct.

JUDGE SEYER: Ckay. Are there
any objections?

MR. GRAHAM  Your Honor, Paul
G aham speaking for staff.

In our filing, we -- in our

filing and response to the

non- unani nous sti pul ati on, we indicated
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that we did not object conditioned upon
staff's being granted perm ssion to
file its testinony.

And that testinony to which
refer we're going to call 105, but it
was pre-filed, so to speak, as a
attachnent to staff's response to the
request to approve the non-unani nous
sti pul ati on.

So we do not object subject to
the Comm ssion's order affirmatively
al l owi ng our testinony to cone in at
this tine.

And at this tinme, | would for
the record tender for adm ssion as an
exhibit, and we would call it 105, the
attachnment that staff nade in the EFIS
file when it attached that testinony as
an exhibit to our suggestions in
response to the non-unani nous
stipul ati on.

M5, VWH PPLE: Your Honor, nmay |
respond?

JUDGE SEYER  Yes.

M5. WHI PPLE: | don't think that
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we're going to have a problemwth
staff's testinony ultimtely being
admtted, but it needs to be admtted
Wi th a sponsoring witness, not at this
time with the conpany's w tness.

JUDGE SEYER:. Al right, that's
fine.

MR, CLIZER  Your Honor, | just
want to point out that | al so have an
objection. This is John Cizer --

(Court Reporter clarification.)

MR, CLIZER  This is John dizer
speaki ng.

But | wanted to -- | didn't know
how qui ckly you were going to rule, so
| just wanted to make sure you know
that | al so have an objecti on.

JUDCGE SEYER: And what is your
obj ecti on?

MR, CLIZER So on May 21st, the
O fice of Public Counsel filed a
response to the conpany's notion for
| eave to file additional testinony and
i ncluded in that an objection to said

testinmony, and I would renew the
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obj ection to the testinony which has
been offered as Exhibit 7 for all the
reasons laid out in our filed notion as
of May 21st.

| can recitate the high | evel of
what those are. It was a fairly
| engt hy obj ection notion.

JUDGE SEYER Al right. |
don't know that that's necessary at
this tine.

And |'Il withhold ruling on the
adm ssion of Exhibit 7 at this tine. |
will admt Exhibits 1, 2, 3, 4 and 8.
As well as Exhibit 105. | nean |'1l]
hold off on ruling on Exhibit 105.

M5. WHI PPLE: Thank you, Judge.

At this time we will tender the
W t ness for cross-exam nation.

JUDGE SEYER: All right.

M. Briscar.

MR. BRI SCAR: No questi ons,
t hank you.

JUDGE SEYER:. Ckay. M. G aham
Ch, I'"'msorry, M. Pringle.

MR. PRI NGE: Yes, thank you,
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Q
A.

Q

Judge.
This is Travis Pringle on behalf

of staff.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON BY MR PRI NGLE:

Good norning, M. File.

Good nor ni ng.

Now, | just have a few questions for you,
first kind of about your testinony in
general. Your testinony is in support of
the -- well, Evergy's position and the
stipulation and agreenent, correct?
Correct.

And part of your support for both Evergy's
position and the stipulation includes the
econom ¢ assunptions underlying said
agreenent, correct?

It -- it includes a financial analysis that
woul d go along with that stipulation,
correct.

And part of that would al so include

proj ected costs, projected | oad
characteristics and projected custoner
participation assunptions?

Maybe make sure |I'mtal ki ng about the sane

thing that you're suggesting. The
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financial analysis would be a

post -participation anal ysis.

Right. But | guess part of your testinony
I nvol ves how that would carry forward if
Nucor were to participate in MEElI A?

Right. So the -- the participation would
be conditional in 2027 and then if they
were to participate beyond that, then it
woul d go underneath the normal MV process
that woul d be post as well, 2029.

And while you're bringing that up, the
current MEEIA Cycle 4, that was approved at
| east for Evergy West in EO 2023-0370,
correct?

Sounds right, 69 and 70, one of those two.
And under the non-unani nous stipul ati on and
agreenent that was approved by the

Comm ssion, the Evergy M ssouri West denand
response wll -- MEElIA busi ness denmand
response programis currently scheduled to
expire at the end of 2027, correct?
Correct.

But the stipulation and agreenent if
approved by the Comm ssion would permt

Nucor participation through the end of
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20297

The stipulation and agreenent is tied to
one of the anmendnents that would need to be
approved, which the anmendnent ties to the
SIL contract, which is -- runs through
2029. The stipulation is tied to

condi tional performance in 2027 and then
participation thereafter underneath what
tariffs are avail abl e under MEEI A, which --
But if the MEEI A busi ness demand response
programwere to expire at the end of 2027,
there is no carve-out in the stip that
woul d |l et that program exist just for

Nucor, is that a fair description?

There's no specific |anguage to that in the
sti pul ati on.

And then also as part of the conpany's
support for Nucor participating in MEEIA,
that involves the usage of avoi ded costs;
Is that correct?

The financial analysis would assune a

avoi ded cost based on our MEEIA Cycle 4
approved prograns.

And just for the record, what is an avoi ded

cost ?
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Avoi ded costs/benefit, those terns get used
together simlarly, but those are a -- an
assunption around having to do sonething
ot herwi se, invest in another supply side
resource other than the demand side
resource that -- that is being enpl oyed.
(Court Reporter clarification.)
Sorry. Energy efficiency and demand
response or both -- and both, yeah.
(By M. Pringle) And then the -- this is
currently the fourth MEEIA cycle that
Evergy has adm ni stered, correct?
Correct.
And t he previous MEEIA cycl e was approved
In EO 2019-0132, does that sound correct?
Sounds right. | think it was two nunbers
agai n, but, yeah, yeah.
And then at |east for that MEEIA cycle,
there was an ordered avoi ded cost nunber,
correct?
That was a contentious issue in that case
that then becane very specific in the
order, correct.
Now, for the Conm ssion orders approving

the stipulation agreenents for MEEIA
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Cycle 4, there was no explicit avoi ded cost
nunber that was ordered, correct?
They did not insert an avoi ded cost nunber
in the order.
And then do you have a copy of your
surrebuttal testinony up there with you?
Yeah, | think so.
When you get a chance, go to page 3, lines
14 and 15. Let nme know when you're there.
| think I'm-- 1"mthere.
Al right. And do you see the phrase that
says, and | quote, While not explicit in
the way MEEIA Cycle 3 was outlined in the
order, inplicitly the MPSC approved the
avoi ded cost by approving the Cycle 4
stipulation and agreenent, end quote?
Do you see that?
| do.
And so | guess just to kind of paraphrase
that, there is no explicit approved avoi ded
cost nunber for MEEIA Cycle 47
M5. WH PPLE: Object to the
extent it calls for a | egal conclusion.
MR. PRINGLE: |'m sinply asking

the witness to confirmthat there is no
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avoi ded cost nunber ordered by the
Commi ssi on.
M5. WHI PPLE: Sane obj ecti on.
MR. PRINGLE: Thank you, Judge.

JUDGE SEYER: 1'Ill overrule the
obj ecti on.
There -- it was not explicit in the way

MEEI A Cycle 3 was --

(Court Reporter clarification.)
-- the MEEIA Cycle 3 order was.
(By M. Pringle) And also is it your
understanding that the other signatories to
t he agreenent understood that the
Comm ssion was inplicitly approving the
avoi ded cost within the conpany's MEEIA
Cycle 4 application?
| don't know that | could speak for what
they thought, if it was inplicit or
explicit, if that was your question.
Yes, thank you, M. File.

Now, | kind of want to talk a little
bit nore about the costs involved wth
Nucor and its volatility. Wuld you agree
with me if | say that Nucor is a unique

custoner for Evergy?
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>

| think that's fair.
And now al so woul d you agree that Nucor is
a very |arge custoner for Evergy?
They historically have been very | arge.
And woul d you characterize their | oad as
materially different from let's say,
commer ci al custoners?
What's an exanple of a commercial custoner
that you're speaking of?
Let's think about a Wal-Mart.
Yes, Nucor would be different in terns of
el ectric profile usage than a Wal - Mart,
correct.
And really would you say that Nucor's | oad
profile differs fromother industrial
custoners served by Evergy M ssouri West?
| would say that -- it depends on how far
you want to slice the different types of
custoners that are industrial custoners in
ternms of what they manufacture, how their
processes are set up and ultimtely how
much energy intensive they are.

You coul d probably granularly slice up
that industrial processes quite thin, but

to ny knowl edge, we don't have anyone to
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the size or -- basically to the size and --

and arc furnace the way Nucor is, if

that's --

Q And then just kind of speaking on that arc
furnace, Nucor's operations are highly
dependent on when they need to produce
steel; is that fair to say?

A. It would be a little bit of a guess at that
point intinme. | nean, right, they're --
they're to nake steel, so, therefore, when
they' re operating, they're making steel.
|'"'mnot sure |'mfollow ng you.

Q Sois it a reasonable inference that their
operations are primarily based on when they
need to nmake steel ?

A. Sure.

Q Now, when it cones to the energy needed to
process this steel, it's fair to say Nucor
can ranp up pretty quick?

A. | don't know that | could speak to that.

Q | guess then when Nucor does need to be in
full operation, it carries with it a
significant load in the eyes of Evergy
M ssouri West?

A.  When Nucor's operating, they -- they have a
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significant |oad, sure.

And that load, is it fair to say that that

| oad can fluctuate?

Hel p me define fluctuate.

kay, let's say it can go from-- let's say
at any time it could maybe be around 18, 19
nmegawatts to all of a sudden it goes up to
30 nmegawatts, goes back down to ten
nmegawatts, sonething |like that.

Their load -- from-- fromny observations
of their load profile, | put alittle bit
of that in sonme of ny surrebuttal

testinony, they do have variations over
hourly basis, and which hourly is inportant
for what we do in denmand response.

But everyone's | oad changes a little
bit all the tine. [It's a question of
what's -- what's that bandwidth, is -- is
it fluctuation versus a normal variation
and all of those things.

And kind of with that fluctuation in m nd;
let's say -- would it be possible for you
or Evergy M ssouri West today to tell us

what Nucor's load will | ook Iike tonorrow

at 2:15 p.m?
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A

Q

| don't know that | can answer that, if --
what it would | ook Iike tonorrow at 2:15
p. M

Wuld it be possible to say what it woul d
| ook |ike today at 2:15 p.m?

| think we could nmake a reasonabl e
assunption; hence, what MV does.
Everything we do in energy efficiency
demand response i s neasuring what didn't
happen, right?

There's |l ots of sophisticated energy
nodel i ng, statistical analysis that does
that, but at the end of the day, right,
we're predicting the future or predicting
what didn't happen. So that's true of
any -- any programthat we run.

Well, when it cones to the EM&V, you just
poi nted out that is a post-perfornmance
measur enment, we wouldn't -- EM&V woul dn't
be used to go ahead and set a baseli ne,
it's nore to confirmwhether that baseline
was net or not?

Can you rephrase just to nake sure |'m
tracki ng you?

Ckay. Like an EM&V or eval uation
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A

measur enent and verification, it's not used
to set a baseline for a participating
custoner, correct?

They -- they ultimately do to determ ne the
performance of -- of that custoner if
that's what you're asking.

Correct, yeah.

Ckay. So, yeah, the EM&V does set a
baseline for the custoner.

But that is post the fact that an event had
been call ed by Evergy?

Yeah, the -- the -- they | ook at all

hi stori cal data and then deci de what the
base -- what they would have used duri ng
that period of tine, correct.

And part of that also is as you're kind of
maki ng those assunptions, they need to be
as accurate as possible; is that fair to
say?

Sur e.

Now, if those assunptions, if those
forecasts are not correct, it could lead to
the benefits nodel ed by the conpany being
over or under value; is that fair to say?

What do you nean by not correct?
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Let's say if, you know, the conpany has
this idea that on day X Nucor would be able
to curtail Y anmount of nmegawatts but in
fact day X cones and instead Nucor only
curtails Z anmount of negawatts, could that
affect the potential benefits other

customers would reali ze?

If -- let me be sure |I'mtracking your
gquestion and -- and -- and repeat it back
here. So if a custonmer was -- we thought

was going to participate wwth Y and only
participated with Z as we look at it after
the fact --

Yes.

-- how woul d -- how woul d that affect other
custoners in our prograns?

Right. How could that affect the benefits
that the conpany is projecting would be

enj oyed by all custoners?

Yeah. So the MEEI A denand response program
has set up to pay for performance, so it
woul d only pay on the Z level that the
custonmer perfornmed at. If that was | ess
than the Y, right, we'd have to figure out

di d soneone el se over-performor how do we
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make sure that we get the total that we
need. But the individual custoner would
only get paid on what they perfornmed wth.

Q And then when it cones to paynent for
performance, that would al so apply to any
participation through an SPP denmand
response programas well, correct?

A. If a custoner is bidding their registered
demand response into the nmarket, how does
that work, is that your question?

Q Yeah. It would still be -- | guess SPP
woul d verify performance before any bill
credit or payouts?

A. Yeah, they have a performance nonitoring,
basically, process to in -- in order to
ki nd of validate what the paynent is or the
performer didn't performand what the price
was and all that.

Q And then also, when it cones to any kind of
participation by Nucor in MEEIA, that would
al so cone with adm nistrative costs for
that participation, correct?

A.  Yeah, we have adm nistrative costs to
recruit custoners, to nmanage and be able to

call themw th our systens, and then
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obvi ously eval uati on and costs al so run

t hrough that.

And for MEEIA participation, is the conpany
able to allocate specific admnistrative
costs to specific participants?

We typically allocate themat the program
| evel, so the whol e MEEI A demand response
program and -- and any other programw ||
get those costs allocated that way.

But woul d the conpany be able to determ ne
t he exact anmpbunt of adm nistrative costs
for Nucor's participation?

We coul d all ocate based on ki nd of
proportions or other nethodologies to
assign, but typically it's done at the
program | evel, which is where kind of cost
effective is done at the normal basis,
right?

And then | guess when it cones to those
adm ni strative costs, the conpany does not
see those as part of the cost of serving
Nucor if Nucor were to participate in

MEEI A?

The costs associated with MEEI A denmand

response, if Nucor was going to participate
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I n MEEI A demand response, would be -- not
be the cost to serve electricity to Nucor,
that's our position.
And that's part of why the conpany has the
position of the hold harm ess portion of
the SIL agreenent should not apply?
The cost of --

(Court Reporter clarification.)
The cost of MEEI A demand response shoul d
not go into the SIL hold harm ess
cal cul ation is our position, correct.
(By M. Pringle) And then also, if Nucor
were to participate in the MEElI A business
demand response program are there
I ncrenental costs associated wth that
participation?
| think this is naybe a -- maybe a nuance
of the question, but, you know, the
Comm ssi on authorized all of MEEIA Cycle
4's demand response with the targets
associated with that which has a budget and
assunmed cost for all participation.

Qur proposal is to include Nucor inside

of the already approved | evel of costs. So

whi |l e Nucor woul d effectuate sone of those
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costs, right, those costs are already
approved as part of it. So not technically
I ncrenental but -- but part of what's

al ready been approved.

Q Now, it's also true that at the tinme that
t he Comm ssi on approved Evergy's MEEIA
Cycle 4, Nucor was prohibited from
participating in that cycle due to the SIL
| anguage?

A. They were not allowed to participate, hence
t he amendnent request.

Q GCkay. One nonment, M. File.

A. Sure.

Q And | think I've got ny last little few
questions for you, M. File.

Now, Nucor has participated in MEEI A
busi ness demand response in the past,
correct?

A. They have.

Q And that was under Evergy's Cycle 3 MEEIA
pr ogr anf?

A. Correct.

Q And that participation was in spite of the
SIL | anguage prohi biting such
partici pation?
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This was before that becane aware that that
was an issue, yeah.

And then | guess it's fair to say that a

| ot of the supposed benefits that the
conpany is projecting is based on Nucor
participation during MEEIA Cycle 37

Can you rephrase just to make sure |I'm
answering that wholly?

Yeah. Is it -- is it fair to say that part
of the projections for the benefits from
Nucor participation in the MEEIA Cycle 4
busi ness demand response i s based on what
the conpany | earned during that Cycle 3
participation?

We generally and have tal ked to Nucor about
participating simlarly than they did in
Cycle 3 with the amount of kWthey could
reduce but in Cycle 4, if that's your
question, yes.

Yes. And the -- | guess the avoided costs
bei ng used for Nucor participation in
Cycle 4, those differ fromwhat was used in
Cycle 3, correct?

Yeah, the -- what we believe is the

inplicitly approved avoi ded cost for
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Cycle 4 are different than Cycle 3.
Ckay. | appreciate your tinme, M. File.
No further questions.
Thanks, M. Pringle.

JUDGE SEYER M. di zer.
EXAM NATI ON BY MR CLI ZER
Good norning, M. File.
Good nor ni ng.
Were you here when | was having a
conversation earlier with M. Mitner?
| was.
So you were probably aware that | had a
question for himand that he oh so
generously pitched it on to you, do you
recall that?
| el bowed himafterwards, so that --
Well, thank you. So obviously ny question
Is the sane one and I'mgoing to do ny best
to try and get it from nenory.

So what is currently preventing Evergy
fromcreating a new tariff that would all ow
a custoner |ike Nucor to participate
directly in a SPP demand response program
outside of MEEIA in a manner that woul d

allow themto be counted for Evergy's
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resour ce adequacy wor kbooks?
A.  So having been close to tariffs in general
related to MEEI A and -- and denand
response, |'d say this: There'd be a
probl em but we could do it.
Q Al right, thank you very nmuch. | have no
further questions.
JUDGE SEYER Al right. Are
there questions fromthe Comm ssioners?
Chai r Hahn.
CHAI R HAHN:  Good nor ni ng.
THE W TNESS: Good nor ni ng.
CHAIR HAHN: I n your
surrebuttal, you tal ked about the
verified peak demand reductions that
Nucor had experienced during MEEI A
Cycle 3. There are sone argunents that
it's difficult to quantify those
reductions because of the load profile
of Nucor.
It seens as though you' ve done
it. Can you talk through how you did
it and how you nade those assunptions
with relation to a baseline and how you

can verify that those are real
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reducti ons?

THE WTNESS: Yeah. So in ny
testinony, basically what |'mdoing is
sharing what a third party has done in
this process. So you may be famliar
in the MEEIA process we have a third
party who evaluates all of our prograns
and historically we've then had a staff
auditor audit that third party.

So what |'ve explained in
testinony is that that third party, and
ADM Associ ates, | think our counsel
nmentioned that at the beginning, goes
t hrough and | ooks at very sim |l ar days
| eading up into the day that we call an
event and then tries to use that to
best nodel what their |oad woul d have
been had we not called an event.

And so there's a particular
issue | think in sone of these where we
| ook at nine of the last ten simlar
days. They say nine of ten because
they throw out one.

There's al ways an anomal y t hat

sonet hi ng doesn't make sense, nmaybe
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they were -- they had an O&M -- or
operations day or a nai ntenance day
t hat day where they weren't running,
okay, so that probably doesn't nake
sense to include in the -- the
basel i ne.

So we [ ook at nine of ten and
then they create a -- an hourly profile
of what their | oad would have | ooked
like during that. And it can have sone
ups and downs and it -- again, in the
testinony, there's even a little bit of
charts around that.

It can have sone |ittle ups and
downs, but it has basically a curve and
then the inportant part then is how do
you neasure that against what they --
their load actually was, because we
have neter data to say what it actually
was. And so then they'll do that and
-- and validate that kW between those
two to say this is what that
per f or mance was.

The -- the inportant next step

that's kind of tal ked about from-- we
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turn that information in -- froma
third party that they evaluated into
SPP to say does this neet the rul es and
paraneters of SPP's demand response for
resource adequacy.
So then they go through that
next step of kind of validating that so
we can put it in our resource adequacy
not ebooks.
CHAIR HAHN. Thank you. One
ot her question. |I'mjust trying to
recall fromreading. There were -- |I'm
just going to -- | think it was seven,
maybe seven events over Cycle 3 that
were responded to. Wre there any
events where Nucor was called on and
did not show up, did not respond?
THE W TNESS: No.
CHAI R HAHN:  Ckay, thank you.
JUDGE SEYER  Any ot her
guestions fromthe Comm ssioners?
COW SSI ONER M TCHELL: Judge,
if I may, it's Conmm ssioner Mtchell.
JUDGE SEYER: (Go ahead,

Comm ssi oner.
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COW SSI ONER M TCHELL: Yeah, |
was -- in your surrebuttal, around page
4, you tal k about the cal cul ation of
the benefit-cost ratio, and that was in
program year 2021-2022. And |I'm
curious if there are other program
years that -- where the data bears out
the 2 point -- greater than 2.0
cost-benefit ratio.

THE W TNESS: For Nucor
specifically, that was the only years
they participated and so we honed in on
the benefits during the years they
parti ci pat ed.

But overall, all of our MEElIA
demand response prograns go through the
sanme cost-benefit test to determ ne
that cost effectiveness |evel, and they
woul d have been on the order very
simlarly to the benefit-to-cost ratio
when you | ook at '23, '24, '25 as you
kind of continue on w thout Nucor, but
t hat woul d have been the -- the
entirety of the group.

COW SSI ONER M TCHELL: Okay.
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That hel ps ne understand why -- why
2021 and 2022 were the only years where
the data shows up in that cal cul ation.
So, thank you, | appreciate that.

THE WTNESS: Yeah, sure.

JUDGE SEYER: Al right. [I've
got a few questions nyself, and this --
|"mgoing to start and refer to your
di rect testinony.

THE W TNESS: kay.

JUDGE SEYER: On page 14.

THE W TNESS: Ckay.

JUDCGE SEYER: The question you
were asked was, Wiy is it prudent and
reasonabl e for the Conm ssion to
approve the anendnent all ow ng Nucor
Sedalia to participate in EMN denand
response prograns?

And within the answer to that
question you |listed off four itens.
And at the bottom of the page, nunber
four, you state, Existing prograns
ensure non-Nucor EMWN custoners are not
harmed by Nucor's participation in

VEEI A demand response prograns.
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Can you el aborate on what you
mean by existing protections?

THE WTNESS: Yeah. That nunber
four was primarily in reference to the
SIL tariff and the protections
associated wth all custonmers in that
tariff.

JUDGE SEYER  Okay. Here, let
me find this.

Have you revi ewed Public Counsel
W t ness Manzell Payne's surrebuttal ?

THE WTNESS: To sone degree,
but |'d probably need refreshed
dependi ng on what you want to ask.

JUDCGE SEYER:. Ckay. Let ne see
if I can find this. This is in
response -- this is on page 3 of that
surrebuttal testinony. And the
guestion was asked of him Can you
provi de any background as to the
connecti on between Evergy's MEEIA
busi ness demand response prograns and
Nucor's SIL tariff?

And part of the answer states,

The Conmm ssion approved a unani nbus
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stipulation and agreenent in
EO 2023- 0407 and EO 2023-0408 to sol ve
all issues regarding Nucor's
participation in EMWs MEEIA Cycle 3.
Now in MEEIA Cycle 4 EMWwants to
i ncl ude Nucor in their MEEI A BDR
program only this tine they are
requesting permssion to do so.
However, the targets for the MEEI A BDR
program and then in parentheses 140
nmegawatts, in 2026 and 150 MWin 2027
have not changed. Those targets were
set without the inclusion of Nucor,
whi ch neans i ncl udi ng Nucor now woul d
create the sane problemidentified in
t he MEEI A prudence revi ew cases where
EMWV used Nucor to neet the targets --
or meet its targets easier, resulting
in an unjustified earnings opportunity
and i ncentives for EMNV and Nucor
respectively.

Do you agree with that
st at enent ?

M5. VWH PPLE: Judge, may | give
the wtness a copy, please --
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JUDGE SEYER  Sure.

M5. WHI PPLE: -- of that
testinmony --

JUDGE SEYER:  Sure.

M5. WHI PPLE: -- you're reading?
Ckay.

JUDGE SEYER: And that was
Ms. Wi ppl e.

THE WTNESS: Ckay. Sorry about
that, | should have said sonething
before, but | did not have it.

Do you -- you're asking do |
agree wth that answer.

JUDGE SEYER: Right. Do you
agree wth that position, for lack of a
better ternf

THE WTNESS: The position that
Evergy would be -- nmake it easier to
achieve their Cycle 4 targets | think
IS a-- 1s a concern that was raised,
and -- and | can understand why it was
rai sed.

The -- the stipulation and
agreenent that we put forth attenpts to

resolve that by if -- maybe you recall
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our MEEI A demand response has a
threshol d for achievenent to where we
must achi eve 65 percent or we get zero
earni ngs opportunity, and that was
contenpl ated w t hout Nucor.

So you could do different ways
to kind of solve that, but we've
effectively said, well, Nucor won't
count towards that 65. So we're going
to get to 65 percent with everybody
el se and then -- to achi eve earnings
opportunity.

So we agree that the target,
that -- that threshold wasn't
contenplated with Nucor and we're
trying to solve that in a different
way. | think that may have answered
your questi on.

JUDGE SEYER: | think so, too.

Referring to the stipulation and
agreenent. |If you can refer to that,
pl ease.

THE WTNESS: | think | m ght
need that one nore tine. 1'll have to

-- sorry for being unprepared w tness
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here. Apol ogi ze about that.

JUDGE SEYER: Al right. On
page 1, the second paragraph, second
nunber ed paragraph --

THE W TNESS: Uh- huh.

JUDGE SEYER: -- it says, SIL
Contract Anendnent. The signatories
agree to insert |anguage in Nucor SIL
contract anendnent stating the approval
of the anmendnent by the M ssouri Public
Service Comm ssion is conditional for
2027.

And then the first bullet point
says, If a financial analysis of
Nucor's participation in business
demand response shows net benefit to
all custoners, Comm ssion approval of
this settlenent and contract anmendnent
wi Il be automatically extended for the
termof the SIL contract term and then
I n parent heses, currently through 2029,
or any aut horized extension.

How wil | you cal cul ate -- how
wi Il you calculate the net benefit to

all custoners?
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THE W TNESS: Yeah, the
financial analysis is related to how we
typically do demand response at the
program | evel, but the request here or
the stipulation here is to do it at the
participant |evel.

So all of the costs associ ated
with the incentive and the eval uation
and the things that we can all ocate,
kind of going back to M. Pringle's
gquestions before, to that custoner
contrasted wth what is the avoi ded
cost or the alternative resource that
we woul d have to put into service if we
didn't have demand response in our
resour ce adequacy st ack.

JUDCGE SEYER:  Ckay.

THE WTNESS: So benefits m nus
the costs then with the all ocated.

JUDGE SEYER: All right. Those
are the only questions | have at this
tinme.

M. Briscar, is there any
recross on behalf of Nucor?

MR. BRI SCAR  No, your Honor.
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JUDGE SEYER: M. Pringle, on
behal f of staff?

MR. PRI NGE: Yes, Judge, thank
you. Travis Pringle on behalf of

staff.

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON BY MR PRI NGLE:

Q

And, M. File, just a few followp on sone
of these resource adequacy questions.

It is true that | guess for the purpose
of any SPP resource adequacy in 2026, it is
too late for Nucor to make a change to
that, correct?

Sumrer of 2026 is past, yes. W turn that
in May 15th.

Al right. And then so | guess for the
pur poses of -- | guess for the purposes of
this case and resource adequacy, Nucor
participation as of now, based on the
currently approved MEEIA, would just be for
next sumrer ?

Correct.

And then also kind of when it cane to the
demand response events that were call ed
with -- and those seven events were called

-- were responded to by Nucor, correct?
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Do you know when it cones to the --
COURT REPORTER: |'msorry, |
didn't get an answer on there.
Ch, sorry. The head shake was i naudi bl e.
Yes.
MR. PRI NGLE: Yeah, | can
confirmthe w tness nodded affirmative.
(M. Pringle) Wen it cones to those
events, are you aware if any of themwere
called -- called around any prepl anned
mai nt enance that Nucor was al ready
under goi ng?
|"mnot aware if that was the case.
Does Evergy do any kind of due diligence to
ensure that there isn't a already
prepl anned mai nt enance or outage in place
when an event is called?
What we do to better understand kind of
i nplications of where a custoner is in
ternms of participation is we have a weekly
neeti ng on Mondays to eval uate ki nd of what
do we look for in terns of expectations for
demand response events and we al so include
our key account fol ks who know if certain

custoners are off for nmai ntenance or for
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those sorts of things, too. So they --
they can communi cate that sort of thing
during those weekly neetings. That's the
typi cal process.

kay. And would that -- would the fact
that there is a schedul ed nmai nt enance

af fect Evergy's decision to call an event?

It -- it may.
Ckay.

MR. PRINGLE: One nonent, Judge.
(By M. Pringle) | quess finally for you,
M. File, | have kind of just a question

about verified peak demand reductions. How
does, to your know edge, SPP account for
variation in expected | oad conpared to
actual performance?
M5. WH PPLE: 1'mgoing to
object that that's beyond the scope.
MR PRINGE: And this is part
of the SPP resource adequacy
accreditation which | believe were
questi ons asked by the Bench.
Ms. VWi ppl e.
M5. WH PPLE: It is very -- if

it'"s related to it, it is very
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tangentially related to it, that there
were not any Bench questions on this
t opi c.

JUDGE SEYER: |I'Il sustain the
obj ecti on.

(By M. Pringle) | guess finally, when it
cones to the allocation of any kind of

I ncentive costs, would it be possible for
the conpany to separate incentive paynents
to Nucor fromthose sent to other custoners
participating in MEElI A busi ness denmand
response?

M5. WHIPPLE: 1'mgoing to
obj ect to beyond the scope as well.

MR, PRINGLE: This is a question
regardi ng all ocati on which the w tness
testified pretty extensively to in
response to questions fromthe Bench.

M5. WHIPPLE: [It's a question
about allocation of incentives which
was not di scussed by the Bench.

MR. PRINGLE: Wich the wtness
hi msel f actually said incentive costs.

JUDGE SEYER: Al right. [I'm

going to overrul e that objection.
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MR. PRINGLE: Thank you, Judge.

A. The -- the short answer is we know exactly
how much i ncentive we woul d pay Nucor, yes.

Q (By M. Pringle) Yes. And that could be
separated from | guess, the pot of the
ot her incentive noney if needed?

A Yes.

Q Thank you for your time, M. File.

MR. PRINGLE: No further
guesti ons.

JUDGE SEYER. Al right.
M. Cizer, do you have recross for
this wtness?

MR, CLIZER | do not. Thank
you, your Honor.

JUDGE SEYER: Thank you.

Ms. Wi pple, any redirect?

M5. WHI PPLE: Briefly, thank
you.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON BY Ms. VH PPLE:

Q In conversations with Chair Hahn and j ust
now wth M. Pringle, you discussed the
seven events where Nucor previously
curtailed as called, correct?

A.  Yes.
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|f an event is called and Nucor was already
down for nmaintenance, | think that was the
exanpl e given, is demand reduction still
achieved in that event?
So when a -- a custoner does not respond, |
think -- is that your question, because
they' re already --
Because they're already down --
Yeah.
-- yes.
| s al ready down. Yeah, that's taken into
account in the pay for performance
ultimately. That's how we validate what --
what they did and what they didn't do.
And in that event, do custoners still
benefit from demand reduction?
So ultimately in resource adequacy, where
the custoner can test and get down to in
terns of their performance and the
nmegawatts they're assigned with it is kind
of their own function, right, they -- they
can do that, right. So if they --

Maybe to put a specific exanple here,
so if the day before they know we're going

to have an event, right, they -- they take
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that action however they want to get that
demand reducti on.

Thank you.

Uh- huh.

In response to cross fromM. Cizer, you
said there'd be a problembut we could do
it. Do you recall that conversation you
were having wth M. dizer?

Was it about the tariffs?

Yes.

| do.

What did you nean by there'd be a problem
but we could do it?

| -- | believe he was referring to can we
change, for exanple, the market-based
demand response programto be inclusive of
resour ce adequacy by participating in SPP' s
progr ans.

You could change the tariff in that
way, but it would be basically kind of flip
reverse of the -- of the purpose, right.
So our MEEI A demand response is a resource
adequacy product. W tie it with
mar ket - based demand response to be energy

ancillary markets, right.
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A

So if they want to participate nore,
contribute nore, take sone narket
opportunities to have sone financi al
benefit for them they can, but the primary
val ue and the value we pay for is for the
resource adequacy.

| f you changed the nmarket-based denmand
response to that be the primary, the
custonmer commitnment woul d have to be
simlar to what SPP requires, which is
you' re bidding that demand response in the
mar ket al nost on a daily basis, and that
|l evel of coomtnent is a totally different
ki nd of custoner comm tnent and val ue
proposition, financial value proposition
that to date we haven't seen custoners buy
In to because the econom cs haven't nade
sense for themto do -- be in the market
that much with their demand response.

Are there any participants in Evergy's MBDR
tariff at this tinme?

Not t oday.

And is that because of what you were just
referring to?

Correct.
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A.
Q

Are there other problens associated with
just editing the tariffs so that Nucor
could participate in SPP prograns along the
lines of M. Cdizer's question?

O her than, you know, unlikely to have
participants in the program based on ki nd
of what we see as the financials there,
they do have to neet additional

requi renents that are above and beyond what
resource adequacy is required that we turn
in to SPP.

So it's alnost like extra in -- extra
wor k, extra cost w thout any extra benefit
in terns of resource adequacy. So that
seens to be the -- the biggest part. W'd
have to recover those costs or the custoner
woul d have to recover those costs in sone
way as they -- if they participated through
SPP' s program
| f | understood you correctly, you're
saying it may actually be nore costly for a
custoner to participate in that fashion; is
that correct?

Potentially.
Ckay. Thank you.
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M5. WHI PPLE: No npbre questi ons.

JUDGE SEYER: Al right. My
this wtness be excused?

Al right. Thank you for your
testi nony.

THE W TNESS: Thank you.

JUDGE SEYER: All right.

Ms. Wi pple, M. Steiner.

M5. VWHI PPLE: Judge, our third
Wi tness is not here yet, but she should
be arriving shortly and if we took a
| unch break, she would arrive during
the lunch break and then we could put
her on the stand after that if that's
pal at abl e for everyone. O herw se
we'll need to proceed with anot her
party at this tinme and take her out of
or der.

JUDGE SEYER: Al right. W
will go ahead and break for |unch now
and reconvene at 12:45. So let's go
of f the record.

(Lunch break.)

JUDGE SEYER: Al right, let's

go back on the record.
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M. Steiner, is your wtness
here?
MR. STEINER:. This is Roger
Steiner with Evergy.
And Linda Nunn is here and we
call her as our next wtness.
JUDGE SEYER:  Ckay.
Al right. M. Nunn, would you
rai se your right hand, please.
L1 NDA NUNN,
(of lawful age, having been sworn, testified as
foll ows:)
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON BY Ms. VH PPLE:
Q Please state your nane.
A. My nane is Linda Nunn, N-u-n-n.
Q By whom are you enpl oyed?
A. Evergy, |ncorporated.
Q And what is your position there?
A. | ama senior manager in reqgulatory
affairs.
Q In this case, on behalf of Evergy M ssouri
West, did you prepare surrebuttal testinony
whi ch has been marked as Exhibit 67
A | did.
Q Do you have any corrections to your
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surrebuttal testinony?

| do not.

If | were to ask you the questions in your
surrebuttal testinony, would your answers
be as set forth in Exhibit 67

Yes.

Are those answers true and correct to the
best of your know edge and belief?

They are.

M5. VWH PPLE: Your Honor, at
this time I1'd nove to admt Exhibit 6.

JUDCGE SEYER  Any objection?

Exhibit 6 is adm tted.

M5. WH PPLE: Thank you. And
now | woul d tender the witness for
Cross-exam nati on.

JUDGE SEYER: M. Briscar, is
there any cross-exam nation on behal f
of Nucor?

MR. BRI SCAR: No cross.

JUDGE SEYER: Al right.

On behal f of staff?

MR. PRI NGLE: Yes, Judge, thank
you.

This is Travis Pringle for
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Q
A

Q

staff.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON BY MR PRI NGLE:

Good afternoon, Ms. Nunn.

Good afternoon.

And just kind of for the record, what were
the years that Nucor previously
participated in Evergy M ssouri Wst's
busi ness demand response MEElI A progranf
That's not part of nmy know edge. | nean |
-- anot her nmenber of the team would know
that information. I'm-- I'mnore of the
accounti ng side.

Do you have any reason to doubt that it was
2021- 20227

No.

And then when it cane to that past
participation, did Evergy reduce the actual
contracted capacity purchases based on
participation from Nucor over those years?
My understanding is that during that tine
the capacity level was adequate to cover
Nucor's costs.

So overall that's a yes?

That's as much as | understand about what

you' re asking capacity-w se.
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And then al so, you have testinony regarding
the hold harm ess provision fromthe SIL?
Yes.
And it is the conpany's position that any
adm ni strative costs or incentive costs
from Nucor's participation in MEEIA should
not be included in that hold harnl ess?
That is correct.
Because the conpany does not believe that
woul d be a cost of service for serving
Nucor ?
For serving electricity to Nucor, that's
correct.
MR PRI NGE: One nonent, Judge.
(By M. Pringle) Thank you for your tine,
Ms. Nunn.
Thank you.
MR. PRINGLE: No further
guestions, Judge. Thank you.
JUDGE SEYERT M. dizer, any
cross on behalf of the Public Counsel?
MR CLIZER No. Thank you,
your Honor.
JUDGE SEYER: Do the

Commi ssi oners have any questions for
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the wi tness?
Al right. Any redirect?
M5. WHI PPLE: Yes, very briefly,
t hank you.
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON BY Ms. VWH PPLE:

Q M. Nunn, you were asked by M. Pringle
here, you know, why you believed the SIL
hol d harm ess calculation is different from
cost to serve under the MEEI A BDR program
Coul d you pl ease el aborate?

A. Inthe -- in the original agreenent, it
very specifically says what types of costs
need to be included and conpared to
revenues in the hold harm ess cal cul ati on
during a rate case and each of those costs
are identifiable as costs to provide
el ectricity to Nucor.

Q And for those a little less famliar with
accounting, what's different about
providing electric service to Nucor versus
Nucor participating in the MEEI A BDR
progranf? Wiy woul d those --

MR. PRINGLE: bjection, beyond

t he scope.
MS. VH PPLE: |"mjust -- it's a
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A

clarifying question to the question

that was al ready asked and the

W t ness's response thereto.

JUDGE SEYER: |I'Il overrule the

obj ection. You can answer the

qguesti on.
So the -- the MEEI A benefits and costs are
all part of that MEElIA construct and then
the hold harm ess is conpletely separate
and it is part of the rate case anal ysis of
the cost to produce electricity for Nucor.
(By Ms. Whipple) Wat would happen if the
costs associated with Nucor's participation
in the MEEIA programwas to be routed
through the SIL tariff's hold harm ess
cal cul ation? What woul d happen then?
There woul d be unbal ance as to cost and
benefit.
And what does that nmean?
That neans that you woul d just be | ooking
at one side of the equation and not the
whol e picture.
What i npact woul d that have on sharehol ders
or custoners?

Shar ehol ders woul d be conpl etely
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responsible for all the costs associ ated

wi th the demand response program regardi ng

Nucor .

Q Regardi ng Nucor?

A.  Nucor, uh-huh, I'msorry.

Q And who would get the benefits under that
scenari o?

A. Al other custoners.

Q Not the sharehol ders who'd be paying all
the costs?

A. Correct.

Q Ckay, understood. Thank you so nuch.

M5. WH PPLE: No further
guesti ons.

JUDCGE SEYER: Thank you -- thank
you, Ms. Nunn, for your testinony.

THE W TNESS: Thank you.

JUDCGE SEYER: M under st andi ng
I's that concl udes your w tnesses.

M5. WHI PPLE: It does. Thank
you, your Honor.

JUDGE SEYER: Al right, staff
of the Comm ssion, would you like to
call your first wtness?

MR. PRI NGE: Yes, Judge. Just
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doing a little nusical chairs real
quick as we get ready to call our first
W t ness.
MR, CUNNEEN:. Staff calls Justin
Tevi e.
JUDGE SEYER: M. Tevie, would
you rai se your right hand, please.
JUSTI N TEVI E,
(of lawful age, having been sworn, testified as
foll ows:)
MR, CUNNEEN. And for the
record, this is Ray Cunneen for staff
counsel .
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON BY MR, CUNNEEN:
Q Good norning -- good afternoon, M. Tevie.
Can you pl ease --
A. Good afternoon.
Q Could you please state your nane and spell
it for the record?
A. Justin Tevie, J-u-s-t-i-n, last nane is
T-e-v-i-e.

Q Thank you. And how are you enpl oyed?

>

By the M ssouri Public Service Conm ssion.
Q Did you prepare or cause to be prepared

rebuttal testinony in this natter marked as
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Exhi bit 1027
A Yes.
Q Do you have any changes or corrections to
your testinony?
A.  Yes.
Q Could you state that correction?
A. On page 8, line 3, it should read
January 1, 20209.
Q Thank you. Are there any other corrections
at this tinme?
A.  No.
Q Are the answers contained in the testinony
true and correct to the best of your
know edge and belief?
A Yes.
Q If | asked you those sane questions today,
woul d any of those answers change?
A.  No.
MR. CUNNEEN. | nove for
adm ssion of Exhibit 102.
JUDGE SEYER: Are there any
obj ecti ons?
Exhibit 102 is adm tted.
Q (By M. Cunneen) M. Tevie, did you
contribute to the testinony in Exhibit 1057

(888) 893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com Nevada Registration #116F - California Firm Registration #179




© 00 N oo o b~ w N B

N N NN NN B B R R R R R R R
o A W N P O © 0 N O U0 M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing
May 26, 2026

Page 150

M. Tevie, 105 would be the testinony
attached to the opposition to the anmendnent
and agreenent.

The nmeno?
Yes.

Yes, | did contribute.

o >» O >

Ckay. Thank you.

MR. CUNNEEN. | nove for
adm ssion of Exhibit 105.

JUDGE SEYER  Well, first of
all, I"mnot exactly clear what
Exhibit 105 is. So can you direct ne
in EFIS, | assune, to where that

testinony is?

Paul G aham speaking for the staff.
This was the subject matter

that we tal ked about this norning.

Exhi bit 105 is the nmenorandum of

testinony that was attached as an

t he suggestions that filed -- that
staff filed in response to the
stipul ati on.

JUDGE SEYER  Ckay.

MR GRAHAM  Your Honor, this is

exhibit or referred to as an exhibit in
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MR. GRAHAM And so -- and this
Is one of the sponsoring wtnesses.
There are two nore sponsoring
W t nesses.

JUDGE SEYER: (kay. And that
s --

MR GRAHAM W are calling it
105.

JUDGE SEYER Right. And it's
ei ght pages, nunbered pages, line
nunber ed pages?

MR. GRAHAM That's exactly what
It is.

JUDGE SEYER: Ckay. And it
actually is headed on the first page
Menor andum Speci fic Cbj ections --

MR GRAHAM  Yes.

JUDGE SEYER: -- correct?

MR GRAHAM  Yes.

JUDGE SEYER:  kay.

MR GRAHAM  And the
Exhibits 103 and 104 which Ray j ust
mentioned to you are attachnents to
t hat menorandum So the three cone in
together, but this witness is one of
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t hree sponsoring wtnesses for the
whole thing. It's not ready to cone in
through him W'Ill have two nore

W tnesses. Sorry to confuse.

JUDGE SEYER Al right. Are
there objections to the adm ssion of
Exhi bit 1057

M5. WHI PPLE: At this tine, yes,
because | think staff has to put all of
their wi tnesses up who have contri buted
in part to this exhibit and any
attachnents and can't get the whole
thing in on only one sponsoring wtness
who contributed only partially.

MR, GRAHAM Staff agrees with
counsel on that and we would wait till
the third witness testifies.

JUDGE SEYER: And that is
M. G aham

MR. CUNNEEN. That is correct.

MR, GRAHAM Well, no, we're not

MR. CUNNEEN: No, he was talking
about who was tal ki ng.

MR. GRAHAM  Ch, okay.
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JUDCGE SEYER: No, no, | wasn't
i nplying that you were going to be the
W t ness.

MR GRAHAM Well, | was ready
for objections over here that | --

(I ndi stingui shabl e.)

MR. CUNNEEN. This is Ray
Cunneen for staff. | tender the
W t ness for cross-exam nation.

JUDGE SEYER  (Okay. And,
M. Cdizer, do you have cross?

MR. CLIZER  Yes, hopefully
briefly.

CRGOSS- EXAM NATI ON BY MR CLI ZER

Q
A.

Q

Good afternoon, M. Tevie.

Good afternoon.

Oiginally | hadn't prepared cross, but
sone of the earlier conversations today got
me confused and | want to just get your
hel p i n understandi ng sonething. So can |
direct you to your rebuttal testinony,

page 87?7

Yes, |I'mthere.

And | just want to understand how this

cust omer basel i ne nodel works. So
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according to what you have witten here
starting on line 17, you talk, For this
type of baseline, the hourly load is the
average hourly |l oad taken fromthe highest
nine out of ten prior non-event,
non- hol i day weekdays for weekday events.
Am | correct in interpreting that to
mean that when you're setting the baseline,
you just |look at the ten days prior to when

an event was called and pick the nine

hi ghest ?

A. Nine of ten average, the nine of ten.

Q Rght. Soit's just the ten that cane
bef ore whatever the event was called; is
t hat accurate?

A. Yes. And these, as | nentioned,
non- hol i day weekdays.

Q Oh, so you exclude days where you would
expect them not to be operating
effectively?

A.  Yeah, holiday -- non -- it's non-holiday
weekdays.

Q Cot it.

A.  Yeah.

Q GCkay. And so the idea is that those nine
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of ten days woul d be consistent and
therefore could give you an average

baseline, is that how that works?

A Yes.

Q Al right.

A. From-- fromthe DR response | received
from Evergy, that was ny interpretation,
yeah.

Q Gay. So is this sonething Evergy does,
sonet hi ng the EM&V peopl e do, sonething
staff does or who is doing this?

A. So let nme just read the DR response.

The DR response says that the EM&V
basel i ne nethod was a nine of ten on
adj usted cust oner basel i ne nodel .

Q Soit's the EM&V group that's doing this;
is that --

A. Fromny -- fromny understanding, yes.

Q Ckay. And as | -- just to nake sure
understand staff's issue correctly,
basically what you're saying is you don't
think that nine of ten days gives you a
reliabl e baseline because of fluctuation,
Is that --

M5. VWH PPLE: Judge, |'m going
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to object to this question. It's
friendly cross. Staff's position is
entirely adopted by OPC. The point of
cross-examnation is to test testinony
that is not in the interest of your
party, not perpetuate testinony that is
purely in the interest of the party you
represent, and that's exactly what's
going on here. It's unfair and it
shoul d st op.

JUDGE SEYER: M. di zer.

MR, CLIZER  You know what ?
Honestly, | don't think that that's a
grounds for it, but I'Il be conpletely
honest, | don't need that |ast
question. M real goal was just to
have a better understanding of how this
basel i ne works and | have achi eved
that, so that was the extent of ny
cross. Thank you very nuch.

JUDGE SEYER: M. Briscar, any
on -- any cross on behalf of Nucor?

MR. BRI SCAR  Yes, your Honor.

CRCSS- EXAM NATI ON BY MR BRI SCAR

Q Let's see. GGood afternoon, M. Tevie.
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Good afternoon.
My nane is Joseph Briscar, | represent
Nucor Steel Sedalia in this matter.

How are you today?
Good.
Good. Do you have a copy of your testinony
in front of you?
Yes, | do.
Ckay. |I'mgoing to ask you a few questions
about your testinony. Cenerally speaking,
according to your testinony, you're broadly
famliar with Evergy's denmand response
prograns, including the MEEIA prograns,
right?
The right person wll be Mark Kiesling or
Jordan Hull. | have a very general idea
about demand response but not Evergy's
demand response, yeah.
Ckay. So you're not necessarily testifying
to the specifics of the business denand
response progranf
No. The right witness would be Jordan
Hul |, staff witness Jordan Hull, yeah.
But you can testify to demand response

prograns generally?
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At this point, no. | just wote about the
basel i ne nmethod, but | related the baseline
met hod to the demand reductions which can
be -- or the demand savi ngs which can be
achieved, but | didn't testify, | didn't
wite testinony about the demand response
programitself.

kay. Well, let's just go through a little
bit of your testinony then.

Ckay.

Can you turn to page 3, please? This is
your surrebuttal testinony -- | nean the
rebuttal testinony.

Beginning on line 7, there's a
gquestion, What are the benefits and costs
of the MEEI A demand response progranf

And you answer on line 8, The benefits
wi Il accrue to Nucor in the formof a
di scounted bill.

Do you see that?

Yes, Sir.

Well, first, before we get into the answer,
t he gquestion asks about your understandi ng
of the MEEI A demand response prograns,

right?
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A.  Yes, the MEEI A demand response program
yeabh.

Q And just a mnute ago when | asked you, you
said you weren't testifying to the denand
or -- the MEEIA denmand response prograns
and you had no know edge of it.

A Wll, | told you --

MR. CUNNEEN. [|'mgoing to
object. This is Ray Cunneen. | think
he's m scharacterizing testinony.

JUDGE SEYER: |I'mgoing to
overrul e the objection. You can answer
t he questi on.

A. So | said | had a general idea but not into
detai | because the question was nore
speci fic about the demand response program
and | don't have any detail ed know edge of
t he MEEI A demand response program but | do
have a general know edge, yeah.

Q (By M. Briscar) Gkay. |I'mjust trying to
|l ay the foundation to understand what it is
you're testifying to and what you're able
to testify to.

A, Kay.

Q So I'mjust |ooking at your testinony
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and we're going to go fromthere, all

right?

Ckay.

Ckay. So specific to your answer to the
gquestion, you say the benefits wll accrue
to Nucor in the formof discounted bill; is
that right?

Yes.

s it your position that the MEEI A demand
response prograns only provide benefits to
participating custoners?

There are al so sone costs invol ved.

| "' m aski ng specifically about the benefits,

t hough.

Well, it should provide benefits to
cust oner s.

So it wll provide benefits not only to

Nucor but to other custoners; is that
right?
Yes.
Ckay. And let's explore sone of those
ot her benefits.

Demand response progranms can provide
and hel p reduce Evergy's capacity

obligation, right?
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A.  Yes.

Q And in addition to avoi ded capacity costs,
demand response can hel p provide
reliability benefits?

You need an exanpl e?

A. No. These questions are outside the scope
of ny testinony because ny testinony wasn't
to tal k about avoi ded capacity costs or
reliability. There's a staff w tness
responsi bl e for that.

Q But your testinony does go to the benefits
that will accrue under the MEEI A prograns,
right?

A. Yes, it does tal k about the benefits, yeah.

Q GCay. In terns of areliability benefit,
let's say that curtailing a load at a tine
of system stress could hel p prevent
brownouts or bl ackouts, right?

s that a yes?

A.  Yes.

Q Thank you. And if a curtail able custoner
is curtailed at the tine of the system
peak, that would help reduce the overall
system peak; is that right?

A. That's correct.
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Q

(kay. And so each of these areas, avoided
capacity, |ower system peaks, those are
potential benefits of demand response
prograns?

Yes.

Okay. So if Nucor participated in the
busi ness demand response program it's not
that the only benefits would be a

di scounted bill to Nucor, it's possible
that we woul d see these other benefits as
wel |, correct?

It's possible, but my discussion of the
benefits was with respect to the baseline
and how the reduction of -- how the
reduction fromthe baseline would create
some benefits. But like | said before, I'm
not the right expert for these kind of
guesti ons.

Ckay. And just to clarify, on those
benefits and getting to nore of those
specifics, which witness did you say that
woul d be better for?

| think that would be staff w tness Mark
Ki esling or Jordan Hul | .

Ckay.
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Yeah.
Wll, then let's turn to the section of
your testinony where you talk about this
| oad forecast for Nucor beginning -- let's
| ook at page 9.
Yes, |I'mthere.
Ckay. Beginning on lines 6 and through 9,
the question is, Does Evergy have the
ability to accurately forecast Nucor's
| oad, to which you respond, No, due to the
| evel of volatility surrounding the | oad,
it is unpredictable. The unpredictability
of the |load inplies that Evergy cannot
accurately forecast the peak denmand
reduction net result fromcalling a demand
response event.

| s that correct?
Yes.
s it your position that Nucor shoul d be
disqualified fromparticipating in the
busi ness demand response program because
its load is unpredictable?
Vell, if the load is difficult to forecast,
right, then it mght be difficult to pin

down the baseline. |f we cannot pin down
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the baseline, then it's difficult to
measure or cal cul ate the demand reductions
or the savings. So that's what | was
trying to say.

Q Are you aware of any other custoners who
wanted to participate in the business
demand response program who are barred from
doi ng so because their |oad -- because of
their | oad shape or their unique |oad
characteristics?

A.  No.

Q Are there any specific requirenents in the
IVEEI A programrestricting custonmers with
unpredi ctabl e | oads from participating?

A. I'"'mnot aware of this.

Q One nonent, please.

That's all. Thank you.

JUDGE SEYER: All right.

Ms. Wi ppl e, do you have cross?

M5. WHI PPLE: No. Thank you,
Judge.

JUDGE SEYER: Do the
Comm ssi oners have any questions for
the w tness?

Al right. Any redirect?
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REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON BY MR, CUNNEEN:
Q M. Tevie, you tal ked about the baseline
nodel and nine out of ten average. You
have revi ewed Nucor's | oad over the period
of tinme, correct?
A Yes, | did.
Q How volatile is Nucor's | oad?
A. | do have sone graphs on pages 9 through --
9 through 11 to show the extent of
vol atility in their | oad.
Q Can you describe how that volatility | ooks
on those graphs?
M5. VWHI PPLE: Judge, |'m going
to interpose an objection at this
point. | think it's -- it's beyond the
scope of cross-exam nation and on top
of that it only relates to the friendly
cross that was offered by OPC
And that's part of the problem
with friendly cross, is, you know,
getting the witness to say sonething on
the stand that then all ows open
redirect by the party, and these are
both parties who are perpetuating
testinmony only in their interests. So
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kind of a doubl e-layered objection at
this point.

MR. CUNNEEN: Judge, |'mjust
going to say that | think everybody
that's crossed M. Tevie at this tine
has kind of hinted towards this
volatility and I'"mjust trying to get
to the bottomof it.

JUDGE SEYER. Al right. [I'm
going to overrule the objection but
will remnd you that it appears that
the informati on on those graphs is

confidenti al .

Q (By M. Cunneen) Just one nore tine.
Coul d you describe how that volatility is
represented in your -- in your graph,
M. Tevie?

A Wll, it shows sonme highs and | ows.

Q Rght. Wth these highs and [ ows, is that
a fluctuation?

A. Yes, it's a fluctuation.

Q Is this fluctuation hourly, daily, nonthly?

A. This graph, | present the 15-m nute
intervals and then hourly intervals.

Q Thank you. One nonent, please.
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Ckay. Back to Nucor's question about
your | oad forecast, how would you neasure
the difference if you can't find a
reasonabl e baseline?

Staff attached FERC -- a FERC docunent
whi ch descri bes -- proposes, | nean,
prescriptions for finding a -- a reliable
baseline in that docunent.
Coul d you expand on what your understandi ng
of that is?
Vel |, the docunent describes howto
establish the baseline w ndow, how to
cal cul ate the baseline itself and then any
adj ustnents to nake to the baseli ne.
Ckay.

JUDGE SEYER: Excuse ne. This

Is Judge Seyer. M. Tevie, did you say

f ake docunent ?

THE WTNESS: Oh, FERC.
JUDGE SEYER: F-E-R-C.
THE W TNESS: Federal Energy

Regul at ory Conm ssi on.

JUDCGE SEYER: Ckay, thank you.
MR. CUNNEEN:. Not hi ng further

fromstaff, Judge.
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JUDGE SEYER: Al right.
M. Tevie, thank you for your
t esti nony.
THE W TNESS: Thank you.
JUDGE SEYER  Staff may call
their next w tness.
MR. PRINGLE: Thank you, Judge.
At this time, staff calls Mark Kiesling
to the stand.
JUDCGE SEYERT M. Kiesling,
woul d you raise your right hand?
MARK Kl ESLI NG,
(of lawful age, having been sworn, testified as
foll ows:)
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON BY MR PRI NGLE:

Q Good afternoon, M. Kiesling.

A. Good afternoon.

Q Could you please state and spell your nane
for the record?

A. Yeah. It's Mark Kiesling, K-i-e-s-1-i-n-g.

Q And, M. Kiesling, by whomare you enpl oyed
and in what capacity?

A.  I'menployed by the Mssouri Public Service
Comm ssion as a senior research and data
anal yst.
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Q And are you the sane Mark Kiesling who
caused to sponsor in this proceeding the
rebuttal testinony of Mark Kiesling which
has been premarked as staff Exhibit 101?

A.  Yes.

Q And are you also the sanme Mark Kiesling who
contributed to the staff nenorandumin
response to the stipulation which has been
premar ked as staff Exhibit 1057

A.  Yes.

Q If | asked you the sane questions wthin
Exhi bits 101 and 105, would your answers be
the sanme or significantly simlar to those
t herei n?

A Yes.

Q And then also are the statenents nade by
you within Exhibits 101 and 105 true and
correct to the best of your know edge and
bel i ef ?

A.  Yes.

Q And at this tinme, do you have any
corrections to nake to either Exhibit 101
or your contributions to Exhibit 105?

A.  No.

Q Thank you, M. Kiesling.
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MR PRINGLE: At this tineg,
Judge, staff noves to enter
Exhi bit 101, the rebuttal of Mark
Kiesling, on to the record.
JUDGE SEYER  Any objections?
All right, Exhibit 101 is
adm tt ed.
MR. PRI NGLE: Thank you, Judge.
And at this tinme staff now
tenders M. Kiesling for
Cross-exam nati on.
JUDGE SEYER: M. di zer.
MR. CLIZER  No questi ons.
Thank you, your Honor.
JUDGE SEYER M. Briscar.
MR. BRI SCAR  Yes, your Honor.
CRCSS- EXAM NATI ON BY MR BRI SCAR
Q Good afternoon, M. Kiesling. How are you?
A. (Good. How are you?
Q Good. M nane is Joseph Briscar, |
represent Nucor in this matter.
Do you have a copy of your testinony in
front of you?
A.  Yes, | do.

Q GCkay. I'mgoing to ask you a couple
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guestions about that. |If you'll start on
page 5 of your testinony.
Ckay.
Lines 9 through 11, you say, Unless Evergy
-- or EMWNW can avoid additional capacity
pur chases or reduces the anmount of new
generation needed to serve Evergy
custoners, non-Nucor ratepayers wll not
benefit from Nucor participation in
busi ness demand response in 2026.

| s that accurate, that | read it
accuratel y?
Yeah.
And first, as we know, the 2026 deadli ne
has passed to put a new custoner into the
demand response program is that right?
To put a new custoner in the demand
response progranf? There is no deadline on
t hat .
Ch, | nmean -- were you here earlier for the
testinony this norning?
Yes.
And there was discussion about how there
was a May 15 deadline to enroll a custoner

for the summer period in 2026. D d you
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hear that?

A Yes.

Q Al I"mgetting at is that the 2026
reference is likely a reference to 2027
now, is that right? O either way, it
woul d work either way?

A. It could be at the tine testinony was
witten, it was before May 15th.

Q Right. And | assune you were here just now
when | was cross-exam ning M. Tevie?

A, Yes.

Q And he suggested that either you or
M. Hull mght be an appropriate witness to
ask about the benefits of demand response
and the business denmand response progranf

A, Yes.

Q Are you able to tal k about that?

A.  Yeah, the benefits, yes.

Q You recogni ze that demand response
generally can provide benefits that include
avoi ded capacity, right?

A. Potentially, yes.

Q But it can also provide reliability
benefits, too?

A. Potentially, yes.

(888) 893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required LEXITAS

www.lexitaslegal.com Nevada Registration #116F - California Firm Registration #179




© 00 N oo o b~ w N B

N N NN NN B B R R R R R R R
o A W N P O © 0 N O U0 M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing
May 26, 2026 Page 173

Like if curtailing during when the system
Is stressed can hel p avoid bl ackouts or
brownouts; is that right?

Potentially.

And so there are other benefits aside from
the capacity benefits, |ike we just
established, the potential benefit of
reltability. |[If a customer reduces | oad
during the system peak, it can help reduce
the system peak; is that right?

That's the design of the program

That benefit, the reduction of the peak,
and the reliability benefits are different
benefits than avoi ded capacity benefits,
aren't they?

Yeah, the avoi ded capacity is supposed to
be a benefit by having a BDR program that
the conpany is deferring future generation
because of the BDR program

Right. And if Nucor were to participate in
t he busi ness demand response program
custoners could see sone of those other
benefits as well, right?

Possi bly, but Evergy didn't denonstrate

t hat .
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Q I'msorry?

A. | said Evergy didn't denonstrate that.

Q Wen a denmand response custoner is
curtailed, they are not only taking | oad
off the systempotentially, but if they
remain curtailed, they' re not adding | oad
back to the system right?

A.  Yeah.

Q And so that -- would you consider that a
benefit as well, of not adding | oad back on
during tinmes of system stress?

A. | nmean it depends when -- what's goi ng on
with the custoner. There's a |ot of
factors that go in to that.

Q So, yeah, let's say it's a, you know, a
| arge custoner, 20 negawatts or sonet hing.
Avoi ding that |load fromgoing on the
system during the system peak coul d hel p
provide reliability benefits; is that
right?

A. Potentially.

Q Nothing further. Thank you.

JUDGE SEYER: Al right. Any
cross by Evergy?
MR, ROBI NSON:  Yes, your Honor.
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CROSS- EXAM NATI ON BY MR, ROBI NSON:
Q Good norning (sic), M. Kiesling. M nane

Is Mchael Robinson on behalf of Evergy. |
just have a few questions for you today.

To begin, staff is not opposed to
demand response generally, correct?
Correct.

And staff is also not opposed to Nucor
participating in demand response, correct?
Correct.

Is it true that demand response can produce
benefits to Evergy M ssouri West?
Potentially, yes.

And is it true that demand response can

al so produce benefits to Nucor?

In the formof incentives?

Sur e.

That woul d be the benefit Nucor woul d get
out of it, yes.

And is it true that curtailment by a |l arge
i ndustrial custonmer during a peak reduction
event reduces system peak | oad?

Shoul d be, yes.

And you're not objecting in this case that

Nucor should not curtail load; is that
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true?

A. | never wote anything about that, no.

Q But you do object that Nucor shoul d not
curtail load within the MEEI A framework; is
that true?

A Yes.

Q Ckay.

A. As it's currently constructed.

MR, ROBI NSON:  Your Honor, ny
next six questions inplicate
informati on that the conpany considers
confidential. Wuld it be all right to
go i n canera?

JUDGE SEYER  Yes.

MR, ROBI NSON: Thank you.

JUDGE SEYER So we are now
going in canera and off the record.
Vell, not off the record but in canera.

MR, ROBI NSON: Thank you,

Judge.

(The follow ng portion of the
hearing is being held in canera, pages
177 and 178.)

(Lines 24 and 25 are
intentionally void of testinony.)
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(The in canera portion of the
heari ng has concl uded, and the hearing
conti nues on page 179, as follows:)

(By M. Robinson) Al right, M. Kiesling,
nmoving on, is it true that EMNis the | oad
responsible entity for purposes of SPP
resource adequacy?

As it's currently, yes.

And is it true that additional accredited
capacity reduces EMNs SPP capacity

obl i gati on?

|"mnot the witness to tal k about that.

M. Jordan Hull could speak to that.

Thank you.

Al right, M. Kiesling, you've
characterized M. File's avoi ded capacity
figure for 2021 and 2022 as
unsubstantiated; is that true?
| don't recall using those words. It's
just a avoided cost that is currently not
approved.

Wul d you mnd reading lines 2 through 4 of
page 5 of your testinony, please.
Yeah. M. File's clainms of avoided cost by

al l owi ng Nucor's participation in BDR,
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there was not an approved avoi ded cost for
Evergy's MEEI A Cycle 4 by the Conm ssion,
so any cl ains of avoidance of the capacity

cost benefits are unsubstanti at ed.

Q Thank you, M. Kiesling. And the basis for
your unsubstantiated characterization is
that, according to your testinony, there
are no work papers and there is no
Comm ssi on approved Cycle 4 avoi ded cost,
true?

A, Yes.

Q But is it true that those figures that
you' ve characterized as unsubstanti ated
wer e produced by ADM & Associ at es?

A. There is no EM&V for Cycle 4 right now
The contract was just recently approved, so
there is no avoi ded cost.

Q \What about --

A.  ADM woul d have been the previous for
Cycle 3.

Q Rght. Sorry. | was referring to Cycle 3.

A Wll, that's Cycle 3. This is Cycle 4.

Q But for Cycle 3, those figures that
M. File cited, were those produced by ADM
& Associ at es?
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A. Wthout verification, | would have to say
yes.

Q And would ADM & Associ ates' work have been
overseen by Evergreen Econom cs?

A. That was the -- the consultant that the
State contracted with, the Conmm ssion
contracted with to review the report.

Q Correct. And did you contact ADMto verify
M. File' s avoided capacity figure before
filing your rebuttal ?

A.  No, because it was froma previous cycle.

Q So you wouldn't -- you wouldn't do that
because it was from a previous cycle.

Do you know if neither ADM or Evergreen
fl agged the avoi ded cost nethodol ogy in the
2021 or 2022 eval uation reviews?

A. Wthout review ng those reports again,
can't --

Q Ckay.

A. -- know one way or the other.

Q And is it true that you did not
I ndependently performany quantitative
anal ysis of the costs or benefits of
Nucor's BDR participation in this case?

A. W reviewed the nunbers, but we didn't use
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an avoi ded cost.
Q Thank you, M. Kiesling.

MR. ROBINSON: | have no further
guesti ons.

JUDGE SEYER Al right. Are
there any questions fromthe
Comm ssi oners?

M. Pringle.

|"msorry. Chair Hahn.

CHAI R HAHN:  Thank you, Judge
Seyer.

Good afternoon, M. Kiesling.

THE W TNESS: (Good afternoon.

CHAIR HAHN: I n staff's opening
statenent, they nentioned a potenti al
cl awback provision if the savings are
not materialized by the end of 2027.
They nentioned that you or M. Tevie
could tal k about that.

What woul d a cl awback provision
of staff's proposing |ook |ike?

THE WTNESS: | think what was
Intended with that is that the
financial anal ysis would be done and

t hen that noney woul d be set aside and
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If there was not benefits shown, then
t hat anmount woul d then be trued up, so
to speak, in a rate case.

CHAIR HAHN: And that would flow
-- that benefit would flow back to all
custoners or however it was determ ned
in the rate case?

THE W TNESS: Correct.

CHAI R HAHN:  Thank you.

JUDCGE SEYERT M. Pringle, do
you have redirect?

MR CLIZER  Your Honor,
technically we'd nove to recross.

JUDGE SEYER: Oh, |'msorry.

MR PRINGLE: But | will have
redi rect, Judge.

JUDCGE SEYER: Ckay. M. dizer.
Sorry about that.

MR, CLIZER | don't know why |
said that because | have no recross,
but --

JUDCGE SEYER: Keep ne in line, |
appreci ate that.

M. Briscar, any recross?

MR. BRI SCAR  No, your Honor.
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JUDGE SEYER M. Robi nson.
MR ROBI NSON:  No, your Honor.
JUDCGE SEYER: All right.
M. Pringle, redirect.
MR. PRI NGLE: Thank you, Judge.
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON BY MR PRI NGLE:

Q M. Kiesling, |I kind of wanted to go back
to sone of the questions that Nucor's
counsel, M. Briscar, asked you earlier.
Those benefits that you were bei ng asked
about, are they exclusive to the MEEIA
busi ness demand response progranf

A.  Yes.

Q Is it fair to say that those benefits could
al so arise fromany denmand response
pr ogr anf?

A.  No.

Q And then also earlier you were talking
about when the incentive costs are paid to
a MEEI A busi ness denmand response
participant. Are you aware that the
paynents are paid up front?

A. Paid up front?

Q  Un- huh.
A Well, it's -- they're paid out once a
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contract is constructed between Evergy and
BDR and then once an event is called
potentially, then it's verified and then a
paynent w |l be made.

kay. And then al so, when did MEEIA
Cycle 3 end?

At the end of 2024.

What aspect of Evergy's MEEIA Cycle 3
program di d the Conm ssion order transfer
over to Cycle 4?

What was that again, |I'msorry?

Any specifics fromthe Cycle 3, like

avoi ded costs, were those ordered
transferred over to Cycle 47

No, there was nothing ordered to be
transferred from Cycle 3 to 4.

And then when it cones to the Conm ssion's
EMBV contractor, Evergreen, its review of
EMEV, are you aware, is that review
specific to BDR participants or the program
as a whol e?

It just | ooks at the programas a whol e.

It doesn't go down on a granular |ever --

| evel to individuals or individual

conpani es.
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MR. PRINGLE: One nonent, Judge.

(By M. Pringle) Finally, M. Kiesling, is
there a difference between potenti al
benefits and realized benefits?

Yes.

Ch, sorry, got one nore question for you.
What is that difference?

Well, the potential benefits in like this
case, all the incentives, admn costs, all
that will be borne by all the other

rat epayers outside of Nucor, and so the --
and I"'msorry, | forgot the other termyou
used. The --

Real i zed benefit.

Real i zed. So that additional cost wll

of fset anything potentially that could be
realized.

Thank you very nuch for your tine,

M. Kiesling.

MR. PRINGLE: No further
questions fromstaff, Judge. Sinply
ask that M. Kiesling be excused.

JUDGE SEYER: Al right.

M. Kiesling, you may be excused.

You can call your next w tness.
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MR. PRINGLE: One nore batch of
musi cal chairs, Judge.
JUDCGE SEYER: M. G aham
MR, GRAHAM Yes. Staff calls
M. Hull.
JUDGE SEYER: Al right. M.
Hul I, woul d you raise your right hand?
JORDAN HULL,
(of lawful age, having been sworn, testified as
foll ows:)
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON BY MR GRAHAM
Q M. Hull, would you state your full nane,
pl ease?
A. Jordan Hull. J-o-r-d-a-n, last nanme Hull,
Hu-I-1.
Q Jordan, whom are you enpl oyed by and in
what capacity?
A. Mssouri Public Service Conm ssion as an
associ ate engineer in the energy resources
di vi si on.
Q And, M. Hull, have you prepared testinony
in this case?
A.  Yes.
Q And is that testinony, to your know edge,
mar ked as Exhi bit 1007
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A

o >» O »

Yes.
And is that surrebuttal testinony?
It's rebuttal.
|'"'msorry, rebuttal.

And in addition, did you -- were you --
did you participate in the preparation of
what's now been denom nated or desi gnated
as Exhibit No. 105, which was testinony in
the formof a nmenorandum that was attached
and in support of suggestions that staff
filed ast week in response to the
non- unani nous sti pul ation?
Yes.
That was a | ong way of identifying it,
wasn't it?
It was very | ong.
Yes. And were there two exhibits that were
referred to within that exhibit, nanely 104
and -- I'msorry, 103 and 1047
Yes.
Ckay. Now, with respect to all of those
exhibits, with respect to your role in them
and in preparing them are there any
m st akes or changes that you need to nake?

Not that |'m aware of.
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And if the questions or the information
that you elicited there, if the questions
were put to you wth respect to that
i nformati on, would you provide the sane
I nformati on or would your answers ot herw se
be the sane?

Yes, they'd be closely the sane.

And to the best of your know edge and
belief, were all of those answers and t hat
I nformati on that you provided, to the
extent that it required truthful ness and
accuracy, were they truthful and accurate?
Yes.

MR GRAHAM (kay. |I'mgoing to
offer at this time -- | believe all
three w tnesses who sponsored Exhibit
No. 105 have now testified with respect
to that exhibit here, so at this tine
|"mgoing to offer Exhibit 100, 103,
104 and 105.

JUDGE SEYER: Any obj ections?

M5. VWH PPLE: Judge, no
obj ections, although we woul d renew our
request correspondingly to adm t
Exhibit 7, which is the Brian File
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testinony in support of the
non- unani nous sti pul ati on and
agr eenent .

JUDGE SEYER: Al right. So
let's revisit that.

| s there any objection now to
Exhi bit 772

MR, CLIZER Yes. John Qi zer
fromOPC. |I'mgoing to maintain ny
witten filed objection to Exhibit 7.

JUDGE SEYER: Al right. And
that is --

MR CLIZER O if necessary,
formal Iy make the sane objection at
this time, however you want to take it.

JUDGE SEYER: That is -- can you
identify that docunent that it's
attached to?

Is it -- it's basically the
obj ection to the non-unani nous
stipul ation and agreenent, correct?

MR CLIZER  No.

JUDGE SEYER: Ch, |'msorry.

MR, CLIZER  There were two
docunents filed in EFIS on May 21st by
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the OPC. One was the objection to the
non- unani nous stipul ati on and agr eenent
and the other was a response to notion
for | eave, objection or in the
al ternative notion to suspend the
procedural schedul e.

| don't know off the top of ny
head what the EFI S nunbers are, but |
can get that to you later. The
objection is | odged exclusively in the
second docunent. The objection to the
stipulation is of course an objection
to the stipulation froma procedural
standpoi nt but not to its admttance.

JUDGE SEYER Al right. And it
| ooks like that's EFIS item nunber 43.

|"mgoing to overrul e that
obj ecti on.

And Exhibits 100, 103, 104 and
105 are adm tt ed.

M5. VWH PPLE: And, Judge, thank
you.

|s Exhibit 7 admtted?

JUDGE SEYER: Yes, Exhibit 7 is

al so adm tted.
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Q
A.

Q

M5. WHI PPLE: Thank you so nuch.
MR GRAHAM Staff tenders the
W t ness.
JUDGE SEYER: All right,
M. dizer.
MR. CLIZER  Thank you.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON BY MR CLI ZER

Good afternoon, M. Hull.
Good afternoon.
Were you here earlier when | had a
conversation with Evergy w tness Mitner
and then later wwth Evergy witness File
regardi ng resource adequacy?
Yes, in general.
And after | had that conversation, M. File
had a redirect question that | feel |ike
i ntroduced potentially sonme confusion, so |
want to do a quick followp wth you, and
it'"s going to be the sane |ine of
questioning that |'ve already gone through.
M5. VWHI PPLE: Judge, |'msorry,
| am-- | amgoing to interpose an
obj ection here. This cross-exam nation
I S agai n agai nst a party whose

I nterests have been adopted entirely by
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OPC and the purpose of the questioning
IS to perpetuate testinony that is
favorable to both OPC and staff. It's
not true cross-exam nation.

O her parties don't have an
opportunity to do this. Evergy and
Nucor have not done it. And | just --
it'"s not fair and I don't think it
shoul d continue and I woul d object.

MR, CLIZER May | respond?

JUDGE SEYER:  Yes.

MR CLIZER First of all, it's
not a basis for an actual objection.
The entire purpose of cross-exam nation
Is to develop ny case, which | am
entitled to do.

Second, | want to nention that
we are not on the sane page as staff.
| filed a separate objection to the
stipul ation and agreenent and staff
previously alluded to the fact that it
believed that it could actually get
behind the stipulation if certain
changes were nmade, which is not a

position shared by the OPC
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Second, | amnot asking to
perpetuate testinony that's already in
the record. I'mattenpting to address
a concern that arose directly because
of cross-exam nation of two Evergy
Wi t nesses that was further redevel oped
on redirect exam nation.

And third, I'd like to throw out
-- actually, I think that's fourth.
|'"d like to throw out that the general
noti on of whether or not we can
actually have a separate alternative
that would allow for resource adequacy
Is an issue that this Conmm ssion shoul d
generally want to have answered per the
course of this entire case.

And | will also throw out that
the idea that they weren't available to
staff counsel, they were available to
staff counsel. Nucor had every
opportunity to friendly cross Evergy's
W t nesses. They did not avail
t hensel ves to that.

And Nucor -- sorry. And Evergy,

for that matter, have further
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cross-exam nation after this, so they
can test whatever | have to say to
M. Hull. The entire purpose of
ordering cross-examnation in this
manner is to allow for that exact
si tuation.
M5. WHI PPLE: Qui ck response,
Judge.
JUDGE SEYER:  Uh- huh.
M5. WH PPLE: The OPC, Iike
every other party, has an opportunity
to redirect its own w tnesses should
those wi tnesses get questions on cross
or fromthe Bench, and that woul d be
the venue for M. dizer's questions,
not friendly cross with staff.
JUDGE SEYER Al right. [I'm
going to overrul e your objection.
(By M. dizer) In M. File's response in
the redirect, he referred to the MBDR |
do not want to discuss the MBDR. So |I'm
going to try and pose the sane question to
you that | had posed previously.

| s there anything preventing Evergy

fromputting a tariff forward right now
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that would allow a custoner |ike Nucor to
participate in SPP demand response prograns
out si de of MEEIA that would still allow for
themto be included for resource adequacy
pur poses in Evergy's workbooks excl udi ng

t he MBDR?

A. No, they can participate in those prograns
and they can count it toward resource
adequacy.

(Court Reporter clarification.)

A. They can count it towards resource
adequacy.

Q (By M. dizer) To be clear for the
record, your first part of that answer was
no, that --

A. There's nothing excluding it.

Q Thank you very nuch.

MR. CLIZER | have no further
guesti ons.
JUDGE SEYER: Al right.
M. Briscar, any cross by Nucor?
MR. BRI SCAR  Yes, Judge, very
briefly.
CRCSS- EXAM NATI ON BY MR BRI SCAR

Q (Good afternoon -- good afternoon, M. Hull.
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How are you?

A. (Good afternoon. |'m good.

Q M nane is Joseph Briscar, | represent
Nucor in this matter.

Do you have a copy of your testinony in
front of you?

A Yes.

Q Let ne see. On pages 8 and 9 generally and
t hr oughout your testinony, you discussed
the SPP verification process for denmand
response, right?

A Yep.

Q And the SPP prograns are governed by the
SPP tariffs and market rules, right?

A. Correct.

Q And those governing docunents are approved
by FERC?

A Yes.

Q And FERC regul at es SPP?

A. Correct.

Q And the busi ness denmand response rules are
governed by the Evergy tariff and program
rules, right?

A Yes.

Q And this Conmm ssion regul ates Evergy's
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CROSS-

tari ffs?
Yes.
And the Conm ssion approved the currently
effective Evergy tariff and MEEI A program
rules, correct?
Yes, but Nucor wasn't in that.
|"mjust asking if the Conm ssion approved
the current rul es.
They approved Cycl e 4.
And the tariff |anguage and the rul es under
t he progranf
Yes.
No further questions. Thank you.

JUDGE SEYER. All right.

Ms. VWi ppl e.

M5. WHI PPLE: Thank you, Judge.
EXAM NATI ON BY MS. VWHI PPLE:
M. Hull, in your rebuttal testinony, you
testified that Nucor previously
participated in EMNs busi ness denand
response programfrom April 1, 2021 through
March 31, 2023, correct?
| think that was the MEElI A prudence review,
revi ew peri od.

M5. WHI PPLE: Al right. And,
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Judge, | have | think just one
gquestion, but | need to use
confidential information, if we could
go in canera.

JUDGE SEYER Al right, let's
go i n canera.

(The follow ng portion of the
hearing is being held in canera, pages
200 and 201.)

(Lines 13 through 25 on page 199
are intentionally blank, due to the in

canera portion of the hearing.)
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(The in canera portion of the
heari ng has concl uded, and the hearing
conti nues on page 202, as follows:)

(By Ms. Whipple) Those historical

curtail ments, the nunbers we discussed in

canera, those delivered |load reductions to

EMNV s system correct?

| mean they weren't supposed to be in that

programat all. At that tine period, they

weren't allowed to.

That's not the question | asked you, is it?
Should I ask it again?

Sur e.

Ckay. Those historical curtailnents

delivered | oad reductions to EMNs system

correct?

That's what your data request said.

(kay. And do you have any reason to

believe that's not correct?

No.

Thank you. In your rebuttal testinony, you

di scussed what you cal |l ed pat hways,

essentially non-MEEIA alternatives for

Nucor to participate in demand response; is

that right?
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Yes.

Your first proposed alternative to MEEIA
woul d be for Nucor to participate directly
in SPP's whol esal e demand response nar ket
as a bl ock demand response resource; is
that right?

That is one option, yes.

Under the SPP demand response construct,
paynents are made to the regi stered narket
participant, which could be a utility, a
retail provider or an aggregator, right?
Correct.

The end use custoner |ike Nucor is then
conpensated through a private contractual
arrangenent with that narket participant;
Is that right?

Yes, so Evergy would be the narket
participant in that.

Unl ess the market participant is, for
exanpl e, an aggregator, correct?

Correct.

Whet her SPP credits a demand response
resource toward Evergy's resource adequacy
obl i gati on depends on whether it is

regi stered as the | oad responsible entity,
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A

correct?

Can you restate that?

Sure. I'Il just say it this way.

That wasn't a question, that's why | asked.
EMVis the | oad responsible entity for

pur poses of SPP resource adequacy, correct?
Yeah.

And so if SPP is going to credit a demand
response resource toward Evergy's resource
adequacy obligation, then Evergy has to be
the registered market participant for that,
correct?

The LRE, yes.

Ckay. And so we tal ked about aggregators
of retail custoners and ARC. That's one of
t he ot her pathways that you testified about
I n your rebuttal testinony, correct?

It's a way, yes.

You're not aware of any specific ARC
contract today between Nucor and a
third-party aggregator, correct?

Not that |'m aware of.

Isn't it true that ARCs participate in
SPP's energy and ancillary services narket?

Yes, but you can still get credit for it if

(888) 893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required LEXITAS
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you participate through Evergy for resource

adequacy.

Q You used the pronoun "you" a couple of
times in there. | don't know what you're
referring to.

A.  Evergy.

Q Ckay.

A. EMWNIif you'd prefer.

Q Maybe I'Il just clarify your response by
aski ng ny question.

ARCs can participate in SPP' s energy
and ancillary services narkets, correct?

A.  Yeah, but they don't get -- Evergy woul d
not get credit for that in the resource
adequacy - -

Q Correct.

A. -- if that's where you' re going.

Q Correct. Yes, thank you for that.

And there's no capacity market in SPP,
right?

A. Not currently, but I'mglad you asked that.

Q Are you aware that there are --

A. Hold on. Can | finish ny answer?

MR. GRAHAM The witness i s not
done with his answer.
(888) 893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required LEXITAS
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THE W TNESS: Ri ght.

M5. WH PPLE: Oh, you al ready
answered my question.

MR, GRAHAM Not to his
satisfaction. | object.

(Court Reporter clarification.)

MR, GRAHAM Paul Graham  Staff
attorney Paul G aham

The witness is entitled to
answer the question to his
satisfaction, not the |awer's.

M5. WHI PPLE: Onh, he did answer
t he question, your Honor.

| f, you know, you would like to
per petuate additional testinony on
that, M. Gaham you can do it on
redirect.

JUDGE SEYER: | agree, | agree.

M5. WH PPLE: Thank you.

MR. CLIZER  Your Honor, John
dizer,

JUDGE SEYER:  Yes.

MR CLIZER | actually think
the only answer we got was |'mglad you
asked that.
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M5. WH PPLE: No, he -- he said
| agree and |I'm gl ad you asked that
questi on.

MR, CLIZER  Ch, | apologize. |
t hought | only heard the second half.

Q (By Ms. Wiipple) Are you aware that there
are no third-party ARCs providing resource
adequacy credit to Evergy today?

A. | think we already said that ARCs coul dn't
provi de resource adequacy to Evergy.

Q So the answer to ny question is yes?

A.  To which question?

Q That there are no third-party ARCs
provi di ng resource adequacy credit to
Ever gy today?

A. | don't know the answer to that.

Q Well, if you believe that ARCs cannot
provi de resource adequacy credit to Evergy,
then would it follow that that's not
currently happeni ng today either?

MR GRAHAM  (nj ect,
argunent ati ve.

JUDGE SEYER 1'Il overrule that
obj ecti on.

A. Can you ask it again?
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Q (By Ms. Wiipple) You testified previously
that you don't believe ARCs can provide
resource adequacy credit to Evergy,

correct?

A. Correct.

Q And so would it follow that resource
adequacy is not being credited to Evergy
today by any third-party ARCs?

A. | have not seen any contract saying that.

Q The third proposed alternative you have for
Nucor to participate in SPP demand response
is through EMN s exi sting schedul e MBDR,
whi ch is the market-based demand response
tariff, right?

A Yes.

Q And you testified in your rebuttal
testinmony that there are no current
participants in that MBDR tariff, correct?

A. As far as | know, yes.

Q And you're aware that the MBDR tariff by
its owmn terns is available to existing BDR
participants, correct?

A. Correct, but | think it could be anended
just like the SIL tariff.

Q The purpose of the MBDR tariff is to enable
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O

a participating custonmer who's already a
BDR participant to also engage in SPP' s
ancillary services and energy narket
activity, correct?
Can you restate that?
The purpose of the MBDR tariff is to enable
a participating custonmer who is al so
al ready a BDR participant to engage in
SPP's ancillary services and energy market?
| think that's one.
And isn't it true that in general custoners
are prohibited fromparticipating in both
an ARC and EMW s BDR program for doubl e
counti ng concerns?
| think that's a | egal question.
Do you know the answer to it?
It says in there --
MR. GRAHAM  (bj ection, he's
I ndi cated that he's not conpetent to
answer the question. It's a |egal
guestion in his mnd.
M5. WH PPLE: It is, first of
all, not a legal question. Even if he
thought it was a | egal question, |'m

sinply asking if he knows the answer to
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JUDGE SEYER: You can answer the
gquesti on whet her or not you know.

A. It does nention both of themin that, if
that's your questi on.

Q (By Ms. Wiipple) Do you know if customners
are prohibited fromparticipating in an ARC
and EMNV's BDR program at the sane tine?

MR, GRAHAM  (bjection, calls

for a |l egal question.

JUDGE SEYER: | don't know - -
don't know that it does. | think you
can answer -- |'Il overrul e that

obj ection. You can answer.
O an ARC and MBDR?
(By Ms. \Whipple) Yes.

| have no i dea.

o > O »

Ckay. If the Conm ssion prohibits Nucor
fromparticipating in the MEEI A BDR
program that would al so nean that Nucor
cannot participate in the MBDR existing
tariff, right?
MR GRAHAM  Your Honor, |I'm
going to object. Wat | hear here is

counsel witing her brief through this
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Wi tness's nouth wth |egal argunents
| aced with facts, |egal argunents | aced
with facts, argunent, inference,
conclusion. She's just witing a brief
here and it's a conpletely
argunentative |line of question.
M5. WHI PPLE: Your Honor, this
W t ness has been proffered as an expert
in tariffs and non-MEEI A alternatives
and |' m asking about what's in his
testinmony and the pernutations of that.
If he can't testify that because it's a
| egal conclusion, then I'd like that to
be on the record about his testinony.
JUDGE SEYER: Al right. 1'm

going to overrule that objection. You
can answer the question.

Can you repeat the question for ne?

(By Ms. Whipple) |If the Conm ssion denies

Nucor's BDR participation, then it follows

that under the MBDR tariff's existing

terms, Nucor couldn't participate in that

either, right?

Not currently, but | already said it can be

anmended just like the SIL tariff is going

(888) 893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required
www.lexitaslegal.com Nevada Registration #116F - California Firm Registration #179

LEXITAS




© 00 N oo o b~ w N B

N N NN NN B B R R R R R R R
o A W N P O © 0 N O U0 M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing
May 26, 2026

Page 212

>

to have to be.

That's what your opinion is, correct?
That's what you're asking.

Yeah, that's not tariffs today. |It's just
your opinion that --

Well, tariffs today say that you can't even
be participating.

That's right, vyes.

You al so testify that SPP bl ock denmand
response resource program and EMV s BDR
program apply different reporting and
verification standards. You testify about
that, right?

That is correct.

Isn't it true that the nore stringent
baseline telenetry and settl enent

requi renents that you talk about with
regard to SPP in the SPP open access
transm ssion tariff are applying to market
regi stered demand response participating in
the energy and ancillary services narket?
Yes, but they're also opening that up to --
that's what | was trying to get to earlier,
before. So there's actually tariff

| anguage for -- SPP proposes to a credit
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capacity for demand response resources and
t hey can count towards the anount of
capacity. That was a proposal that SPP had
on April 17th of 2026.

So as of right now, | think it's energy
and ancillary services, but it's opening
up, and | think that's the pathway that
they're novi ng based on --

And that's not -- those changes are not in
pl ace?

No, but it's in tariff |anguage from | ast
nont h.

And the MEEI A BDR programis not registered
as a market participant in the energy and
ancillary services nmarket of SPP today,
correct?

No.

The purpose of the MEEIA BDR programis to
del i ver resource adequacy value to EMN as
the | oad responsible entity, correct?
Yeah, but you could do that through SPP,

t 0o.

That's your opinion, right?

That's what their tariff says. | -- 1| have
not seen anything in -- in -- in SPP s
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tariff saying that you coul d not

partici pate.

l|'mtrying to -- you were -- you were

tal king about a future tariff that's not in
effect. And are you now tal ki ng about the
currently in effect SPP open access

transm ssion tariff?

Yeah.

Ckay. So let nme just nake sure that |
under st and what you' re sayi ng.

Ckay.

Under the current SPP open access

transm ssion tariff, the MEEI A BDR program
offered by EMNVis not registered as a

mar ket participant in SPP s energy and
ancillary services narket?

That's correct.

Ckay, thank you.

Now, when you're tal king about the
non- VEEI A alternatives in your rebuttal
testinony, isn't it true that you testified
that they still require this Comm ssion to
approve an anmendnent to Nucor's SIL
contract before Nucor could participate or

pursue any of then?
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Q

A
Q
A

Yeah, | have | anguage in ny rebuttal.

And isn't it also true that you have not

I ndependently verified that the alternative
pat hways would in fact deliver SPP resource
adequacy value to EMW as the | oad
responsible entity?

Can you restate that?

Isn't it true that you have not

I ndependently verified, in that you haven't
contacted SPP, for instance, that any of

t he proposed alternative pathways woul d
del i ver resource adequacy value to EMN as
the | oad responsible entity today?

| have |listened to working groups on the S
-- in SPP and | haven't seen a reason why
they couldn't.

Are you the correct witness to ask
guestions about staff's clawback condition
proposed in the staff nenorandumfiled in
response to the non-unani nous stipul ation
and agreenent ?

No.

Who woul d that w tness be?

| think that would be Justin Tevie.

Ckay. Are you aware -- |I'Ill just ask you.
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Are you aware if that proposed cl awback
condition is referring to claw ng back
IVEEI A participation costs and routing them
through the SIL tariff's hold harnl ess

provi si on?

A, I'mnot sure.

Q GCkay. Do you know all of the requirenents
of SPP for participating in their block
demand response/ di spat chabl e demand
response tariffs?

A | read the tariff.

Q Do you know if the requirenents are the
sane or different fromthe requirenents to
participate in the MEEI A BDR progranf

A. They're different. They have nore
guardrails.

Q Do you know whether SPP in fact verifies
resource adequacy value in the MEEI A BDR
pr ogr anf?

A. |If SPP -- say that again.

Q If SPP is going to credit EMN against its
resource adequacy obligation because of the
IVEEI A BDR program you're aware that SPP
verifies that?

A.  Yeah, but they couldn't credit themthe
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sane as if they were in the demand response
program because there's different

basel i nes.

They're different. But SPP verifies the
resource adequacy obligation credit that
EMNV woul d recei ve because of participation
in the MEEI A BDR program right?

| believe so.

Ckay.

M5. WH PPLE: No further
guesti ons.

JUDGE SEYER: All right.

Chai r Hahn, you have questions?

CHAI R HAHN:  Yes.

Good afternoon, M. Hull.

THE W TNESS: Good afternoon.

CHAIR HAHN: | feel 1like we need
sone clarification here, so |I'm going
to make sonme statenents and | want to
ask if you agree.

At SPP, market register demand
response, or DR, cannot be used for
resource adequacy currently, it can
only be clainmed as a | oad reduction

fromthe LRE or | oad responsible
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entity's peak denmand forecast?

THE WTNESS: That's fal se.

They can get credit for resource
adequacy right now.

CHAI R HAHN:  Under what progranf?

THE W TNESS: Under SPP' s
tariff.

CHAIR HAHN:. | don't believe
that's the case, but they could in the
future under revision request 703 on
the formal framework for DR and LRE
peak demand assessnents, correct, which
Is currently being --

THE WTNESS: Capacity. Are you
tal ki ng capacity?

CHAIR HAHN: Capacity.

THE WTNESS: Yeah. I'm-- |I'm
tal ki ng resource adequacy. You can get
resour ce adequacy credit,
accreditation, but you can't get
capacity credit until they deci de what
to do with this proposal

CHAI R HAHN: My under st andi ng
fromSPP is that the reduction is taken

Into account in the net peak demand,
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which is used as the | oad forecast
benchmark for ensuring conpliance wth
t he resource adequacy requirenent.

THE WTNESS: Can you say t hat
again? That was a | ot of words.

CHAIR HAHN: O course.
Currently, demand response for resource
adequacy purposes can only be cl ai ned
as a | oad reduction against the |oad
responsible entity's, LRE s, peak
demand forecast.

This reduction is taken into
account in the net peak demand, which
Is used as the | oad forecast benchmark
for ensuring conpliance with the
resour ce adequacy requirenent.
Revi si on request 703 --

THE W TNESS: Yes --

CHAI R HAHN:  Ckay.

THE WTNESS: -- | agree with
t hat .

CHAI R HAHN:  Ckay.

THE W TNESS: W have -- we have
a data request from Evergy sayi ng that

they can use it for -- in the resource
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adequacy wor kbooks. That woul d be
DR 20. Do you want ne to read it?

CHAIR HAHN:. That woul d be
hel pf ul .

THE W TNESS: Per di scussion
with SPP, Evergy as the LRE can utilize
Evergy market registered DR prograns in
our resource adequacy wor kbooks. To
reduce our net peak demand, Evergy does
not currently have any narket
regi stered program for bl ock denmand
response or di spatchabl e denmand
response.

CHAIR HAHN: | think that's in
line with what |' m sayi ng.

THE W TNESS: Ckay.

CHAIR HAHN: That's --

THE W TNESS: Maybe | was
m sunder st andi ng you.

CHAI R HAHN:  Uh- huh. Ckay. So
they can't count it actually toward
capacity for resource adequacy purposes
until FERC litigates revision request
7037

THE W TNESS: Correct.

(888) 893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required
www.lexitaslegal.com Nevada Registration #116F - California Firm Registration #179

LEXITAS




© 00 N oo o b~ w N B

N N NN NN B B R R R R R R R
o A W N P O © 0 N O U0 M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing
May 26, 2026

Page 221

CHAI R HAHN:  Ckay.

THE WTNESS: | think that's
where we were.

CHAI R HAHN:  Yeah. Ckay.

THE W TNESS: Ckay.

CHAI R HAHN: W got it.

THE W TNESS: Yeah.

CHAI R HAHN:  Thank you.

JUDGE SEYER: Do any ot her
Comm ssi oners have questions?

Al right.

| have kind of a -- just kind of
a general question. Staff has filed
their objection to this non-stipulation
-- or non-unani nous sti pul ati on and
agreenent, but are there any provisions
in that stip and agreenent that staff
coul d support?

THE WTNESS: | think there was
certain ones. | would have to read it
again.

JUDGE SEYER: Do you need a --
do you need a second to look at 1t?

THE WTNESS: | would say ne

personal Iy, no, but staff m ght have
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different opinions. | -- | amnore --

| think the SPP's programis putting up
the guardrails that need to be in place
to have successful denmand response
that's actually conpetitive and shows
actually what that capacity is worth.

JUDGE SEYER: I n witness
Meitner's surrebuttal in response to
your rebuttal, he stated that the other
demand response prograns that you --
that staff has suggested as
al ternatives for Nucor do not provide
adequate -- provide resource adequacy
benefits.

Shoul d demand response
activities provide resource adequacy
benefits? Is -- is --

THE WTNESS: | think in SPP
t hey have to.

JUDGE SEYER  Ckay.

THE W TNESS: Because there's no
capacity market.

JUDGE SEYER  Ckay. Al right,
M. Cizer, do you have recross?

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON BY MR CLI ZER:
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Q First, you referenced DR 20. |Is that
attached to your testinony in any way?

A. | think so. | do not know off the top of
nmy head.

MR. CLIZER  Because it was
referenced and read in, | would nove
that it be admtted as an exhibit and
"1l offer it as an OPC exhibit if
necessary. That's nore for the
conpl et eness of the record than
anything. |[If it is already attached,
t hen obviously | don't need it.

JUDCGE SEYERT M. G aham do you

know if that's attached?

THE WTNESS: | can | ook real
fast.

MR GRAHAM Help ne again with
what it is. | tried to understand what

you were referring to, but | --

MR, CLIZER  Staff data request
20 answer .

MR, GRAHAM | do not know.

Let's see what he says.

THE WTNESS: | don't think it
Is, actually. It mght be in the neno.
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M5. WHI PPLE: Conpany has no
objection to admtting it as an exhibit
and don't care whose exhibit it is.

MR CLIZER Again, I'm--
really just nore for the conpl eteness
of the record. 1'Il offer it as OPC
Exhibit 202 and get a copy in. |It's
staff DR -- sorry. |It's the response
to staff DR 20.

JUDCGE SEYER: Al right. Do any
ot her parties have any objection to
that com ng into evidence?

Al right, then Exhibit 202 --
correct, 2027

MR. CLIZER | have 202.

JUDGE SEYER:  Ckay.

-- Is admtted.

(By M. dizer) | don't knowif |I want to
ask any further questions on the
conversation you had wwth the Chair because
| think I'mgoing to confuse nysel f, but
|"mgoing to do just one to see if | can.

Do you agree with what Judge Seyer read
regardi ng the surrebuttal testinony offered

agai nst your position on the resource
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adequacy, that the -- that the alternative

you recommended do not offer resource

adequacy?
A. | think they do -- you can offer it in --
they've said you can -- they can use it in

t hei r wor kbook.
Q Al right.
MR. CLIZER | have no further
recross. Thank you.
JUDGE SEYER Al right.
M. Briscar.
MR. BRI SCAR No questi ons.
JUDGE SEYER Al right.
Ms. Wi ppl e.
Ms. Wi pple: None, thank you.
JUDGE SEYER: M. Gaham any
redirect?
MR GRAHAM  No.
JUDGE SEYER: All right.
M. Hull, thank you for your testinony.
THE W TNESS: Thank you.
JUDGE SEYER Let's take a break
at this point and reconvene at 2: 30.
(Wher eupon, a break was taken.)

JUDCGE SEYER: Al right. At
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this time the Comm ssion would like to
re-call JP Meitner to the stand.

M. Meitner, you're already
under oath, so if you could just take a
seat .

JP MEl TNER,

(havi ng been previously sworn, further testified
as follows:)

JUDGE SEYER  Chair Hahn.

CHAI R HAHN: Good afternoon. |
apol ogi ze for doing this, but I think a
| ot of confusion was potentially
created. | think there's sone part of
your surrebuttal that can be hel pful.

THE W TNESS: Ckay.

CHAIR HAHN:. So | just want to
cl ear up a coupl e things about resource
adequacy at SPP.

THE W TNESS:. Sure.

CHAI R HAHN:. Ckay. \When we say
resour ce adequacy used in your
wor kbook, it is -- it nmeans different
things. It can nean accredited
capacity, it can nean a calcul ation as

far as your peak demand forecast, it
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can nean a few different things.

I n your surrebuttal, you say
that Evergy's current prograns do not
all ow you to reduce the conpany's net
peak demand. |Is that still your --

THE WTNESS: The point |I'm
trying to make is when | ooking at the
tariffs, the Evergy tariffs avail able
today, the only tariff that allows for
resource adequacy treatnent is MEEIA
BDR.

CHAI R HAHN: Ckay. And MEEI A
BDR is the only one as far as capacity
accreditation that you get credit for
I n resource adequacy at SPP?

THE WTNESS: Correct. And the
-- and the demand response portion
woul d be taken agai nst the peak | oad
f orecast.

CHAI R HAHN:  Thank you.

THE W TNESS: Uh- huh.

JUDCGE SEYER: Al right. Do any
of the parties have foll owp questions?
And 1'Ill begin with Nucor.

MR. BRI SCAR  No, your Honor.
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JUDGE SEYER Al right. Staff.

MR GRAHAM No, your Honor.

JUDGE SEYER  Public Counsel .

(Court Reporter clarification.)

MR, CLIZER | haven't supplied
one yet. | apologize. That was
soneone speaki ng.

Yeah, so very briefly. John
Cizer on behal f of OPC.

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON BY MR CLI ZER:

Q Your testinony is that right now the only
existing tariff is Evergy's MEEI A BDR
program that's what you've testified to,
correct? Onh, sorry, let ne -- let ne
clarify that. Let ne --

You' ve testified the only tariff
avail able to neet the resource adequacy
t hrough SPP for the demand response program
Is Evergy's MEEI A BDR program is that
right?

A. The MEEI A BDR program woul d be the only
avenue to supply the demand response

towards Evergy M ssouri West's resource

adequacy process via the -- the net |oad or
the -- the | oad forecast.
(888) 893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required LEXITAS

www.lexitaslegal.com Nevada Registration #116F - California Firm Registration #179




© 00 N oo o b~ w N B

N N NN NN B B R R R R R R R
o A W N P O © 0 N O U0 M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing
May 26, 2026 Page 229

Does Evergy -- for purposes of neeting
resour ce adequacy, does SPP | ook at Evergy
West as a standal one or conbined with
Evergy Metro?
Evergy M ssouri West is a |oad responsible
entity. As far as the resource adequacy
process, SPP views it as a conbined entity.
And woul d you agree with ne that right now
Evergy as a conbined entity neets its
resource adequacy requirenent today?
For the sumrer of 2026, it was sufficient
or -- or cured of any deficiencies.
So a short answer woul d be yes?
For the sumrer of 2026 is what | was
clarifying, the answer would be yes.
And then again, ny last question really --
well, | shouldn't say that. It's never the
| ast .

Coul d Evergy create a tariff that woul d
all ow - -

MR, STEINER: 1'mgoing to
object. This is beyond the scope of
Chair Hahn's questions. She asked what

(Court Reporter clarification.)
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MR. STEINER. This is Roger
Steiner with Evergy.

Thi s goes beyond the scope of
Chair Hahn's questions. She didn't ask
about future tariffs, she asked about
what the existing tariff said.

MR CLIZER D d she? | thought
t hat her question generally was trying
to get clarification as to the
testinony provided in his surrebuttal.

MR, STEINER: The questions were
directed to Evergy's current process.

MR. CLIZER As far as the
guestions relate to the testinony, his
surrebuttal, let ne ask you a question,
then directed to the | anguage in his
surrebuttal. Wuld that be sufficient?

MR. STEINER:. That's al so
beyond her questions. She had one
question. W're already up to five
fol | owups.

MR, CLIZER  Since when does the
nunber of questions matter?

MR, STEINER: Wen it's

3 o' clock in the afternoon.
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JUDGE SEYER 1'Il overrule the

obj ecti on.
MR CLIZER | will try and keep

this short.

Q (By M. dizer) At page 3 of your
surrebuttal testinony beginning at |line 1,
it reads, Evergy does not currently have
any market regi stered prograns for bl ock
demand response or di spat chabl e demand
response prograns.

Do you see that in your testinony?

A. | don't have ny testinony with ne.

Q | apol ogi ze.

MR CLIZER Wuld parties
object if |I handed himny copy?

MR. STEINER. Go ahead. o
ahead, your Honor. Go ahead, John.

THE WTNESS: | can go back and
get a copy. | wasn't -- | didn't
realize --

MR CLIZER It's fine.
THE W TNESS: Ckay.
Q (By M. dizer) I'mjust |ooking at that
-- that |anguage in that bracket, it's

begi nning on line -- the sentence begi nning
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on line 1, continuing toline 2. | can't
repeat it because | don't have it in front
of me now, but is it hopefully consistent

with what | just read?

Yeah. Yes, it says -- you want ne to read
it?
Go ahead.

Evergy does not currently have any market
regi stered prograns for block demand
response or di spatchabl e demand response.
You woul d agree with ne that Evergy could
Create prograns?

MR, STEINER: Again, this is
beyond the scope of Chair Hahn's
guesti ons.

JUDGE SEYER: |'mgoing to
overrule that. You can answer the
guesti on.

Thi s question was asked of ne earlier

and | deferred it to witness File. |I'm--
"' m not the expert on the Evergy tariffs.
(By M. dizer) Al right, thank you.

MR. CLIZER | have no further
guestions. | would ask for that back,

t hough.
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THE WTNESS: (Indicating.)
MR CLIZER  Thank you.
JUDCGE SEYER  Ckay. Any
questions by Evergy?
MR, STEINER: No, your Honor.
That's Roger Steiner.
JUDGE SEYER: Al right, thank
you.
And | believe we are to the
poi nt where we are going to have
testinmony fromthe Public Counsel's
W tnesses; is that correct?
M. Cizer, is that correct?
MR CLIZER That's to ny
recol | ecti on.
JUDGE SEYER: Call your first
W t ness.
MR. CLIZER  The OPC woul d call
Manzel | Payne.
JUDGE SEYER. M. Payne, you've
got your right hand raised. Thank you.
MANZELL PAYNE,
(of lawful age, having been sworn, testified as
follows:)
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON BY MR CLI ZER
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Q

M. Payne, can you please state and spell
your nane for the record?
Yes. Manzell Payne, Ma-n-z-e-I-1, |ast
nanme is P-a-y-n-e.
And have you prepared or caused to be --
caused to be prepared testinony which has
been premarked Exhibit 200, the surrebuttal
testi nony of Manzell Payne, public and
confidential ?
Yes.
Do you have any corrections you need to
make to that testinony?
| actually do, yes. Very briefly.
Wul d you pl ease explain those questions
and identify the page nunber on which they
were -- sorry, those corrections and
identify the page nunber on which they
woul d occur?
Yes. Page 1 of ny surrebuttal, question
21, What is the purpose of your direct
testinony? That should be surrebuttal
t esti nony.

Page 2, line 10, M. Hull's testinony
el aborates on why Nucor's special rate --

it actually should -- there's -- the word
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"why" should not be there. It should be
crossed out.

And then ny | ast one, sorry for so many
of these, line 4, Participating in the
VEEI A BDR programwi th al so taking shoul d
be while instead of wth.

' msorry, what was the page nunber on that
| ast correction?

Ch, page 5. Sorry.

Page 5, line 4?

Yes.

Thank you. And with those corrections,
woul d your answers today be the sane or
substantially simlar to what you gave in
your pre-filed testinony?

Yes.

And are your answers true and correct to
the best of your know edge and belief?
Yes.

MR CLIZER At this tinme |
woul d offer as OPC Exhibit 200 the
surrebuttal testinony of Manzell Payne,
public and confidential versions, and
tender the witness for

Cr oss-examn nati on.
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JUDGE SEYER: Any objection to
that testinony comng into evidence?
Al right, Exhibit 200 is
adm tt ed.
MR, CLIZER | have tendered the
Wi t ness for cross-exam nation, your
Honor .
JUDCGE SEYER: | under st and.
M. G aham
MR. GRAHAM No questi ons.
JUDGE SEYER: Any cross on
behal f of Evergy M ssouri West?
MR, ROBI NSON:  Yes, your Honor.
CRCSS- EXAM NATI ON BY MR ROBI NSON:
Q H, Manzell. M nane is Mke. | just have
a few questions for you today.
To begin, you did not sponsor any
I ndependent quantitative analysis of the
costs or benefits of Nucor's BDR
participation in this case, true?
A. | did not.
Q GCkay. And you also did not perform an
I ndependent SPP resource adequacy anal ysi s
for EMN true?
A. | did not.
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Q And you also did not independently audit
the work papers underlying M. File's
avoi ded capacity figure, correct?

A.  No.

Q And you testified that you agree with the
positions that staff has taken in this
case; is that true?

A.  Yes, up until their new position of
sponsoring portions of your guy's
stipulation, | --

Q But beyond that, yes?

A. | believe so, yes.

Q Ckay, thank you. And are you aware that
staff has al so not perforned an i ndependent
SPP resource adequacy anal ysis for EMAP

A. | amnot sure what staff has done on that
front.

Q Do you know if staff has in fact perforned
an i ndependent SPP resource adequacy
anal ysis for EMAP

A. | do not know.

Q Ckay. Wat about -- do you know if staff
has perforned an i ndependent quantitative
anal ysis of the costs or benefits of
Nucor's BDR participation?
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No, not off the top of ny head, but | feel
like that is on Evergy's -- | feel Ilike
that is Evergy's burden of proof.

Thank you. M. Payne, to be clear, you're
not agai nst demand response prograns in
general; is that true?

That is true.

Nor are you agai nst Nucor's participation
I n demand response prograns generally; is
that true?

| -- | believe | m ght have nentioned that,
|"'mnot against that. | think it's just
the current MEEI A structure.

But you don't object to Nucor curtailing

| oad in general ?

| don't think so.

Isn't MEEIA at present the only

Comm ssi on- approved way for EMNVto get
resour ce adequacy?

| actually do not believe that | amthe
correct witness for that question. | think
Dr. Marke will be a better witness to
answer that question.

Al right, M. Payne. You have not

quantified the SPP resource adequacy val ue
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that Nucor's nmegawatts of accredited
curtail ment would deliver to EMVNas a | oad

responsi ble entity, correct?

A. Can you restate that question?

Q Sure. So the SPP resource adequacy val ue
that Nucor's nmegawatts of accredited
curtail nment would deliver to EMN you have
not quantified, calculated or otherw se
verified that val ue, have you?

A. | have not, but on that front of resource
adequacy, | would strongly encourage you to
ask Dr. Marke about that.

Q Ckay, thank you

Now, you recommend that the Conm ssion
deny EMN's application; is that true?

A. Yes, as the -- as it stood at the tine.

Q And your fallback recomendation is that
Nucor be directed to a non-MEEI A pat hway,
correct?

A.  Yes.

Q And those are the -- those non- MEEI A
pat hways that you reference are the SPP
demand response options in M. Hull's
rebuttal; is that true?

A. Yes, and | -- | believe Dr. Marke al so
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expands on those and I would recommend you
ask himthose questions as well.
Q So just to be clear, you have not
I ndependently anal yzed whet her any of those
pat hways would in fact deliver resource
adequacy value to EMN true?
A. That is true.
Q GCkay. No further questions. Thank you.
JUDGE SEYER. Al right.
M. Briscar.
MR. BRI SCAR No questions, your
Honor .
JUDCGE SEYER: Are there any
guestions fromthe Comm ssioners?
Al right.
Any redirect?
MR CLIZER | guess just very
briefly.
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON BY MR CLI ZER
Q You were asked a large series of questions
regardi ng perform ng i ndependent anal ysis
just now, do you recall that?
A.  Yes.
Q Does your testinony rely on the analysis

perfornmed by staff or Evergy with regard to
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benefits?
A. No, it does not.

MR. CLIZER | have no further
redirect.

JUDGE SEYER Al right. Thank
you for your testinony. You're
excused.

Al'l right, Dr. Marke is the next
W t ness.

Whul d you raise your right hand?
Thank you.

CEOFF MARKE,
(of lawful age, having been sworn, testified as
foll ows:)
Dl RECT EXAM NATI ON BY MR CLI ZER
Q Good afternoon, Dr. Marke.
Can you pl ease state and spell your
name for the record?
A It's CGeoff, Ge-o-f-f, Marke, Ma-r-k-e.
Q And by whom are you enpl oyed and i n what
capacity?
A. By the Mssouri Ofice of Public Counsel as
t he chi ef econom st.
Q And have you prepared or caused to be

prepared pre-filed testinony which has been
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mar ked as OPC Exhi bit 201, surrebuttal
testinony of Geoff Marke?

Yes.

Do you have any corrections to nake or you
would |i ke to nmake to that testinony?

No corrections.

If | were to ask you the sane questions,
pose that testinony today, would your
answers be the sanme or substantially
simlar?

The sane.

And are those answers true and correct to

the best of your know edge and belief?

Yes.

MR. CLIZER  Your Honor, | wll
nmove for the adm ssion of OPC
Exhi bit 201, surrebuttal testinony of
Geof f Marke.

JUDGE SEYER: Al right. Any
obj ecti on?

Exhi bit 201 is admtted.

MR CLIZER  Your Honor, |
tender this wtness for
Cross-exam nati on.

JUDCGE SEYER: M. Pringle.
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MR. PRINGLE: Yes, thank you,
Judge. This is Travis Pringle on
behal f of staff.
CRCSS- EXAM NATI ON BY MR PRI NGLE:

Q Good afternoon, Dr. Marke.

A. Good afternoon.

Q Now, was the OPC a signatory to the
non- unani nous stipul ati on and agr eenent
resol ving Evergy's MEEIA Cycle 4?

A W were.

Q And are you aware of the conpany's position
that the Comm ssion inplicitly approved the
avoi ded costs in its application?

A |I'mfamliar with the conpany's argunent.

Q As a signatory to the stipulation, is it
OPC s understandi ng that those avoi ded
costs were inplicitly approved?

A.  No.

Q Wiy not?

A. Those avoi ded costs were an issue of
contention during the MEEIA case. \Wat are
we avoi di ng, you know, was -- was
ultimately, you know, at -- at heart of the
MEEI A case.

In the first -- in that MEEI A
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iteration, we actually had to conbine Metro
and West together to go ahead and
effectively do the nental gymmastics.

And if the Comm ssion will recall,
Evergy never went to hearing over its
MEEI A. That was a settlenent that happened
outside of -- basically post Ameren going
to hearing. But a lot of the argunents
that were present in the Aneren case were
just as present in the Evergy case or even
nore pronounced because -- for reasons that
have al ready been addressed.

There is no capacity market at SPP.
Parties, including OPC, cane to an
agreenment noving forward, but OPC and the
parties never explicitly articul ated what
t he avoi ded cost assunption is because,
agai n, that avoi ded cost assunption was
really just at -- at issue in terns of how
you could calculate it and --

M5. VWH PPLE: Judge, |'msorry,
|"mgoing to have to object. This
violates the Comm ssion's pre-filed
testinony rule. You know, staff's

question relates to the conpany's
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position as filed.

OPC had an opportunity on
rebuttal and surrebuttal to offer
pre-filed testinony as to the avoi ded
capacity costs from Cycle 3 and that
inplicitly being carried over to Cycle
4,

And so this testinony is just
bei ng manufactured on the stand today
and it should have been offered in
pre-filed testinony nonths and nont hs
ago.

MR, PRINGLE: May | respond? M
understanding is that this was brought
up in the surrebuttal testinony Brian
File, which there was no chance to
respond to that. So seeing as how this
IS cross-exanm nation and | am buil di ng
staff's case, this is a conpletely fair
guesti on.

M5. WH PPLE: And, your Honor,

It wasn't the -- this has been the
conpany's position since their
application and | actually think,

Travis -- | nean | don't -- we don't
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have a |ive feedback here, but | think
that was your question. It really has
been since the conpany's application.
JUDGE SEYER: Well, given the
testinony that was offered with the
non- unani nous sti pul ati on and
agreenent, I'mgoing to -- I'mgoing to
overrul e that objection and allow the
guesti on.
MR. PRINGLE: Thank you, Judge.
(By M. Pringle) And | forget where you
were at, Dr. Marke.
Well, M. Pringle, we're not avoiding
anything. | nean that -- that's really at
the heart of it. W're not avoiding
anything and the CCNs that we've got in
front of the Comm ssion are evidence of
t hat .
You know, we spent -- context is
I nportant for OPC, and why we were
signatory to that in part was because we
spent a good decade filing nenos, filing
testinony effectively saying that Evergy
West ratepayers were exposed to the market

for a nunber of years.
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We overpaid in fuel costs, we overpaid
ina-- in a nunber of different areas
because Evergy West el ected to go ahead and
strand one of its coal plants.

Now, what's changed between now and
when that MEEI A was approved is -- | mean
heaven and earth has changed. W weren't
tal ki ng about data centers during that
first MEEIA. W weren't tal king about the
-- the anmount of generation that the
conpany is building noving forward here.

So when -- when we sit here and we're
-- we're -- the conpany is trying to
shoehorn an avoi ded -- avoi ded cost
estimate that's four, five years old that
was prem sed on shaky data at best, and
trying to put that as a forward proxy for
what we're actually avoiding is -- it
doesn't reflect reality.

Thank you for that, Dr. Marke. And al so
just a few questions for you about resource
adequacy. It is your understanding that at
| east for the conpany's SPP resource
adequacy accreditation for sumrer 2026,

Nucor can't help that at this tine,
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correct?

There are no benefits for ratepayers if the

Comm ssi on approves this today, zero. |It's
-- we're -- we're effectively saying here's
a mllion and quarter dollars that we're --

we're going to go ahead and section off to
t he conpany and Nucor.
And you're saying that's not even just this

summer but al so next sumer there'd be no

benefit?
Well, next summer the nunbers w Il change
again. W will have to adjust for all of

the generation that we have brought on that
we are buil di ng noving forward.

Because you got to keep in mnd, it's
not Evergy West here that we're talking
about, it's Evergy. So it's all of Evergy
conbined that is part of that resource
adequacy.

And Evergy is long as -- as a hol ding
conpany, as -- as an entire entity, they
are long on capacity. So the -- so we get
the accredited resource adequacy from
deferring future load for Nucor, it's not

novi ng the needl e one way or the other.
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And then again, the -- the big X factor
that we have noving forward is we just
don't know what the world is going to | ook
like with these data centers.
Q Thank you for your time, Dr. Marke.

MR. PRINGLE: | have no further
guesti ons.

JUDGE SEYER Al right, cross
on behal f of Evergy.

M5. WHIPPLE: Not at this tine,

t hank you.

Judge, maybe this isn't the tine
to raise it, but we would request to be
able to put Brian File back on the
stand to respond to the testinony of
Dr. Marke regarding the capacity (sic)
3 avoi ded capacity costs and his
understanding as a Cycle 4 stipulation
signator, which was new testinony just
now, so the conpany could respond to
it.

JUDGE SEYER I'Il allow that.

M5. WH PPLE: And when woul d you
like that to happen? | don't want to

throw a wench in it, but we could do
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it after Dr. Marke has conpleted all of
his testinony and all of the questions
or whenever your Honor would I|ike.

JUDGE SEYER: That woul d be ny
pref erence.

M5. WHI PPLE: (kay, that would
be great. Thank you.

MR CLIZER Are all these
guestions regarding the terns of a
stipulation that isn't in the record?

JUDGE SEYER: |s that a question
for me or is that a question for
Ms. VWi ppl e?

MR CLIZER Honestly, it's an
open question at this point.

| mean should we put the Cycle 4
stipulation in the record at this stage
If we're going to have multiple
questions related to how to interpret
it?

M5. WHI PPLE: If your Honor is
eliciting responses fromthe parties on
that, | don't think that's necessary.

The testinony that we just
received for the first tine today from
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Dr. Marke was his perception of whether
the Cycle 3 avoided capacity costs were
inplicitly brought forward in the
Cycle 4 order approving the Cycle 4
stipulation. That's the only question
and he gave a lot of testinony on that.
It's not about the stipulation itself.

MR. PRINGLE: | would al so put
forward, Judge, that | think it would
be prudent for the Conmm ssion just to
take judicial notice of the report and
order approving that stipulation and
agr eenent .

JUDGE SEYER: Right, | agree
with you, M. Kraner -- or Pringle, |I'm
sorry.

MR. PRINGLE: Thank you, Judge.

JUDGE SEYER Al right.

And so the Comm ssion will take
judicial notice of that report and
or der.

kay. WM. Briscar, do you have
any cross?

MR. BRI SCAR. Just a coupl e.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON BY MR BRI SCAR
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A

Good afternoon, Dr. Marke.
Good afternoon, M. Briscar.
Briscar, yes.
Brisc (phonetic).
Briscar, yes. | represent Nucor in this
matter, as |I'msure you're aware at this
poi nt .

Do you have a copy of your testinony in
front of you?
| do.
Ckay. | have a couple questions or just a
handf ul of questions about your testinony,
but | wanted to follow up on a response
that you gave to staff just now

In response to a question, you stated
that if Nucor -- |'m paraphrasi ng here, but
if Nucor were allowed to participate in the
busi ness demand response programin 2026,
It would provide no benefits in 2026; is
that correct?
Yes.
But the stipulation in this case provides
for participation starting in 2027; is that
correct?

| don't know what you've stipulated with
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t he conpany over.

Q You've not reviewed the stipulation?

A | -- cursory.

Q Ckay, fair enough. If you'll refer to your
testinony at page 8, beginning at line 10
you have a question and answer about
basically data centers and their inpact
goi ng forward.

Are there any data centers on the SIL
tariff?

A.  No.

Q Do you agree that data center |oads could
be very different than steel mll | oads?

A. Sure.

Q That data center | oads generally have a
pretty high |oad factor, they run close to
all the tinme?

A. Cenerally data center | oads are going to be
nore flat.

Q Right. And as we've heard today, the steel
mll | oads can go up and down?

A. R ght.

Q And considering the data center |oads, do
you agree that their ability and
willingness to participate in denmand

(888) 893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required LEXITAS

www.lexitaslegal.com Nevada Registration #116F - California Firm Registration #179




© 00 N oo o b~ w N B

N N NN NN B B R R R R R R R
o A W N P O © 0 N O U0 M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing
May 26, 2026 Page 254

response nay be very different than that of
a steel mll?
A. | can't speak for the data centers.
Q Fair enough. Thank you
MR BRI SCAR. That's all.
JUDGE SEYER: All right. Are
there any questions fromthe
Comm ssi oners?

Al right. M. dizer,

redirect?
MR CLIZER | guess just very
briefly.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON BY MR CLI ZER:

Q Wth regard to the questions you received
regardi ng the difference between data
centers and a steel snelter, maybe |
m sunderstood. What is -- what is -- what
Is the significance of the data center that
you are bringing up?

A. Today, or really past tense at -- at this

poi nt, when we contenpl ated Nucor, Nucor

was -- was a special snowflake inits
overall size. Mowving forward, that -- that
distinction is -- is being eroded as you

bring in |arge data centers and | arge
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custoners. So the inpact an individual --
that Nucor wll have by default is going to
dimnish as a result of that.

The [ast Q%A effectively in -- in ny

testinony that Nucor referenced was just
|argely just a -- a call nore for the
Comm ssion that, hey, there's a | ot of
things in flux. SPP is changing their
rules literally as we speak. And as the
data centers materialize, there needs to be
a | arger conversation about how demand
response works.
Thank you. You, as part of your response
to staff questions, you nade the statenent
Evergy is long on capacity. For the sake
of the record, can you pl ease expl ain what
you nean by | ong on capacity?

So the conpany is required to neet a

certain negawatt threshold. | -- I -- it
Is constantly changing. It's -- it's
usual ly, you know, |ike a 10, 15 percent,

20 percent nore than what their actual peak
demand is.
So the conpany invests or has invested,

you know, with all sorts of resources to
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exceed that level. And that's been the
case. Wen -- when SPP | ooks and val ues
Evergy as a standal one entity, they're

| ooking at all the generation that's in
pl ace.

And for their part, like Evergy is as
well. Evergy's not sitting there saying,
hey, it's peak demand tine right now, we're
going to go ahead and -- and -- and focus
in on calling our -- our denmand response
custoners, because Evergy has assets that
they need to run to nake noney, okay? Like
that's -- that is the key conponent right
t here.

And that's why denmand response, unlike
in the MSO footprint, runs into a nunber
of challenges on the SPP footprint. Their
-- the value for ratepayers is severely
di m ni shed because of the vertically
I ntegrated nature of SPP.

Thank you for that response. But to be
clear, for the sake of the record,
literally what does the word "l ong" nean?
They have nore generation than they will be

able to utilize.
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Q Thank you very nuch.

And do you happen to know nunerically
what that | ooks |ike?

A. | looked at the winter and sumer SPP
resource adequacy reports. The sumer has
t he conpany | ong over --

(Court Reporter clarification.)
MR CLIZER Well, no. One
second.

Q (By M. dizer) Wuld that information be
confidential ?

A.  No.

Q Ckay, please continue. | apol ogize.

A. So | had had an opportunity to do -- to --
to effectively |l ook at the resource
adequacy nunbers that have been filed with
SPP. In the sumer it's -- it's north of a
hundred. That's just the Evergy M ssouri.
And if you throwin the Evergy Kansas with
It, it's well over a thousand. The w nter
was over a thousand.

Q And you throw out nunbers wi thout units. A
t housand what ?

A. Megawatts. Sorry. O a gig, so --

Q Thank you very nuch.
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MR. CLIZER | have no further
Cross-exam nati on.

JUDCGE SEYER: Al right.

A. | stand corrected. [It's 800 in the wnter,
not -- not a thousand. Still nuch nore
than what the load is for -- for Nucor.

Q (By M. dizer) ay, thank you.

MR, CLIZER | have no further
redirect.

JUDCGE SEYER: Al right. Thank
you, Dr. Marke.

And you have no further
W t nesses, correct?

MR CLIZER  No.

So is the Commission re-calling
M. File?

JUDGE SEYER M position is
that she can re-call himas a rebuttal
witness if she would Iike to do.

MR CLIZER | would just I|ike
to point out it would appear that we're
trying to devel op conpeting testinony
over the different parties’
understanding of the inplications of a

report and order.
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Way woul d we need testinony
evi dence for how different parties are
interpreting the Comm ssion's report
and order?

M5. WHI PPLE: 1'd also be happy
to strike Dr. Marke's testinony in that
regard fromthe record and not re-call
M. File.

MR. PRINGLE: | would also |ike
to point out, Judge, that the conpany
did not redirect M. File on this
topic. So | believe they've actually
| ost their chance to do this.

M5. WH PPLE: W couldn't --

MR. PRINGLE: It would be a
second bite at the apple.

(Court Reporter clarification.)

JUDGE SEYER  That was
M. Pringle.

MR. PRINGLE: Yes.

It was nore have to do with on
cross-exam nation, M. File was
directly asked about the inplicit
approval, and there were no further

questions fromthe conpany on it.
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Seeing as how OPC was a signatory to

t hat sane agreenent, not quite sure why
they didn't ask Dr. Marke about it

t hensel ves. They did not.

M5. WHHPPLE: M. File or
Dr. Marke?

|"mgetting -- the chronology is
that Dr. Marke testified after M. File
did this day.

MR. PRINGLE: But, no, actually,
the chronology is M. File was
guestioned about it and then on
redirect the conpany did not follow up
wth himon it.

M5. WHI PPLE: Dr. Marke never
testified about this in his pre-filed
testinmony. He just took the stand and
of fered testinony that was never
previously offered in this case. That
violates the pre-filed testinony rule.

MR, PRINGE: And again, |I'm
| ooking at the surrebuttal testinony of
M. File. If the conmpany can point out
where in his direct testinony he tal ked

about the inplicit approval -- |'m not
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finding it.

M5. WHI PPLE: Good news. |
think that we are going to withdraw the
request to have M. File take the
stand, and it has to do with ny
m sunderstanding of M. File's
testinmony, and | understand now and |'m
confortable with the record as is. And
t hank you all for indulging ne.

JUDGE SEYER  kay.

MR CLIZER However, to be
clear, the Conm ssion is taking
adm ni strative notice or judicial
noti ce, whatever the proper phrase is,
of the report and order that we're all
attenpting to interpret?

JUDCGE SEYER:  Yes.

MR. CLIZER  Thank you.

MR. PRINGLE: And for the
record, that nunber is EO 2023-0369 and
0370.

JUDCGE SEYER: Coul d you give
those | ast four nunbers again?

MR PRI NGLE: Yes. 0369, |
bel i eve, was the Evergy Metro and 0370
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was Evergy West, but they were both
settl ed together.

JUDGE SEYER: Al right. | have
not seen anything in the filings that
I ndi cated that expedited transcripts
wer e requested, so | would expect the
transcripts to be filed within ten
busi ness days or so of today's hearing.

And then for the -- and then per
the procedural schedule, the initial
briefs are due June 18th and the reply
briefs are due July 2nd.

MR. STEINER. Could we have a
m nut e, your Honor?

JUDGE SEYER:  Yes.

(Court Reporter clarification.)

JUDGE SEYER  That was --

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Unknown
Voi ce.

MR. STEI NER: Roger Steiner,
Ever gy.

M5. WHI PPLE: Judge, if it's all
right wwth you, in light of the
transcripts comng out in ten days, the

parties have agreed, again if it's all
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right wth you, to change the briefing
schedul e.

JUDGE SEYER: How so?

M5. WHI PPLE: |f we could please
nove the initial brief deadline. It's
currently July 17 -- I'msorry, June
17. |If we could please nove it to -- |
think it's June 18, so -- is it the
18t h?

MR, STEINER But we want to
change it --

M5. VWH PPLE: But we want to
change it to June 25th.

JUDGE SEYER  Okay.

M5. WH PPLE: And then the reply
brief deadline, | do not have that in
front of nme, when it is, but we'd like
to change it to July 9th.

JUDGE SEYER: July 2nd.

So initial briefs would be due
on June 25th rather than June 18th and
reply briefs would be due July 9th
rat her than July 2nd.

And all parties are in

agreenent, correct?
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MR. Graham Yeah.
JUDGE SEYER: Ckay. Al right.
|f there's nothing further -- is there
anything further, let ne ask you that?
MR, PRINGLE: Just a little
housecl eaning on the staff's part just
to nmake sure we got our exhibits in.
(Court Reporter clarification.)
MR. PRINGLE: This is Travis
Pringle on behalf of staff.
MR GRAHAM 100 t hrough 105.
MR. PRINGLE: Yes. | believe we
have a public and confidential 100, a
public and confidential 101, a public
and confidential 102 and then a 103,
104, 105.
JUDGE SEYER Right, all of
those exhibits were previously admtted
I nto evidence.
MR, PRINGLE: Thank you, Judge.
MR, CLIZER  John Cizer for
OPC.
| s the Bench going to take or
wi Il the Conm ssion take all the
pre-filed exhibits wthout us
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subm tting copies?
JUDGE SEYER: Correct.
MR. CLIZER  Thank you.
JUDGE SEYER: Al right. So
with that 1'Il adjourn the hearing.
We'll go off the record.
COW SSI ONER M TCHELL: Thank,
you, Judge.
(The hearing concluded at 3:32
p.m)
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CERTI FI CATE

|, MARY KERKVLI ET | VEY, Certified Court
Reporter within and for the State of M ssouri and
Certified Court Reporter within and for the State
of Kansas, hereby certify that the foregoing
pages constitute a true and accurate transcri pt
of the nmatter set forth in the caption hereof and
that said transcript is now herewith returned.

| further certify that | am not court
reporter, enployee, counsel, attorney or relative
of either party, or otherwise interested in the
event of this suit.

| have hereunto set ny hand at ny office in

Shawnee, Kansas, this 2nd day of June, 2026.

N e _:;&:‘_.&.@,/
MARY EERﬁbLl ET | VEY

CERTI FI ED COURT REPORTER MJ629
CERTI FI ED COURT REPORTER KS863
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